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CHAIR’S STATEMENT 2020
This Statement usually focusses exclusively on the year ending in March, to
accompany the Financial Accounts. However, because of the unprecedented events
of the last few months, I will also discuss the impact of Covid-19 on Muir, and how
the organisation has responded magnificently to it.
The Covid-19 pandemic and the consequent
Government ordered lockdown of the UK from 23
March 2020 has created an unprecedented and
challenging situation for the Association to deal
with. I am extremely proud of the way in which
the teams at Muir Group have responded and
adapted to the new ways of working.
Throughout this difficult time our priority has
been the safety and wellbeing of our staff,
tenants and contractors.
It was necessary for the Association to take quick
and effective action which included invoking its
recovery planning process. We undertook
detailed reviews of all operational and financial
activities to understand and minimise the risks
that were being created by the pandemic. Within
a short period of time we put the technology in
place to allow our staff to work efficiently and
effectively from home.
Lockdown meant that we had to restrict our repairs service to an emergency only
service. This meant that it was necessary to furlough staff involved in the delivery
of these services. I am pleased to say that we continued to maintain full pay for
these staff members during this emergency period.
The restrictions had a significant effect on our ability to repair and re-let out empty
properties and so our voids figures for the current year 2020/21 will be higher than
we have been used to. We were also fearful that our customers would find it more
difficult to pay their rent. Since the Government has begun to ease restrictions we
are now focusing on remobilising our services as far as we can. We are letting our
empty properties to customers and can see voids coming down to acceptable
traditional levels. Customers rent arears have risen but not by as much as originally
feared and the threat of increasing bad debts has, to date, failed to materialise. The
repairs service has restarted with all furloughed staff returning to work, with the aim
of addressing the backlog as quickly as possible.
Those of our staff on the front line deserve our appreciation, and I am deeply
grateful for the way they have gone the extra mile in providing care and support to
our vulnerable customers in difficult circumstances.
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CHAIR’S STATEMENT 2020 CONTINUED
The future remains uncertain as the full economic effects of the pandemic unravel.
I am confident, however, that we are financially strong enough to weather the
conditions that may be presented. We have a tried and tested recovery plan that
we can reintroduce should the need arise.
Turning to our results for 2019/2020, we made a surplus before tax of £3.9 million.
This was £1.1 million lower than in 2018/19 and was reflective of another year of rent
reductions and significant increases in fire safety related maintenance costs. We
invested £7.7 million in new homes and over £3.1 million in major component
replacement and the number of new homes completed was 50 homes for rent and
5 shared ownership homes.
I would like to welcome Pam Williams to the Board. Pam joined the Board in
September after a short spell as a co-optee to the Group Audit and Risk Committee,
August 2019, I would like to register my thanks to Alison for her service. I would
also like to thank Peter Fieldsend who retired from the Board after 9 years of service
much of which was spent as Chair of the Group Audit and Risk Committee, Peter s
experience and knowledge were extremely valuable to the Association.
year in operation and has been an unqualified success. I encourage you all to read
their first NRG Annual Report which can be found on our website.
I am very pleased to report that following an in-depth assessment carried out by
the Regulator of Social Housing the Associations regulatory grades were confirmed
to continue to be G1 and V1. This is a great tribute to all the hard work and
commitment shown by the staff, the Executive and the Board.

during the year but because of delays caused by the pandemic the results were only
received in April 2020. I am pleased to report that there were no significant areas
of concern following the review, there were some opportunities for improvement
identified and the Board has an action plan to implement these over the coming
months.
I would like to complete my statement by thanking the hard-working members of
staff who have worked so tirelessly in dealing with the impact of the Covid-19
pandemic and for the continued support of my fellow Board Members. There are
some uncertain and difficult times facing us all but I feel we have the team at all
levels to be able to face and overcome whatever problems this pandemic might yet
deal to us.

David Gardiner
Chair
24 September 2020
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STRATEGIC REPORT FOR YEAR
ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

Financial Statements 2020
Muir Group Housing Association Ltd

The Board presents its strategic report and audited consolidated financial statements of the
Association and its subsidiary undertakings (together the Group) for the year ended 31 March 2020.

Overview of the business and principal activities
Muir Group owns or manages services to over 5,600 homes across a wide geographical area, often
in small towns and cities and in rural communities.
The Association provides a diverse range of housing solutions to meet the needs of customers
including:
• General needs accommodation to rent, for people who cannot afford to rent or buy on the
open market.
• A range of supported housing services including accommodation-based services provided
directly or indirectly through specialist organisations and other non-residential support
services.
• Products for customers who wish to purchase their own home but are unable to afford open
market prices, including shared ownership and rent to homebuy.
During the year the number of properties owned and or in management increased by 35 from 5,616
to 5,651. At the end of the year 125 homes were in the course of construction.
The table below (Fig1.1) shows the number of homes owned and or managed over the last five years:
Fig 1.1 Homes owned and/or managed
General and older persons
Rent to buy
Supported
Shared ownership

Leasehold for the elderly
Leasehold management
Supported owned but managed by others
Total

2020
No.
4,570
36
251
491
5,348

2019
No.
4,530
36
254
498
5,318

2018
No.
4,502
36
305
499
5,342

2017
No.
4,456
37
312
494
5,299

2016
No.
4,412
35
322
483
5,252

23
153
127
5,651

23
148
127
5,616

23
143
76
5,584

23
137
59
5,518

23
131
68
5,474

Muir Group Housing Association Limited is the parent organisation of the Group. The table below
(Fig 1.2) shows all the members of the Group as at 31 March 2020, their legal status, principal activity

Fig 1.2 ORGANISATION

STATUS

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY

BASIS OF
CONTROL

Muir Property Solutions
Limited (MPS Ltd)

Companies
Act 2006

Maintenance Services for
Muir Group.

100% ownership
of share capital
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Financial Statements 2020
Muir Group Housing Association Ltd
Vision and mission

The objectives and strategies of Muir Group are set out in our Corporate Plan that is reviewed annually
and approved by the Board.
The Corporate Plan outlines our vision and mission and our mission goals. Our vision and mission is
staff, residents and other stakeholders and approved by the Board.

Objectives and priorities
Our strategic objectives and priorities to help us pursue our vision and mission, included within the
Corporate Plan, are the following:
this means providing a safe home for our customers to live in, complying
with all health and safety requirements and adhering to the highest possible standards of best
practice.

Keeping people safe

this means achieving a resident satisfaction rating with the
overall service provided of 91%. This currently represents the minimum level of satisfaction that
would qualify for inclusion in the upper quartile of performers.

Improving customer satisfaction

this means maximising the number of new homes we can deliver whilst
maintaining financial stability.

Building new homes

this means ensuring that our terms and conditions and
working environment are conducive to recruiting and motivating our people to provide the highest
quality services.

Retaining talented and satisfied staff

this means providing homes that people want to live in,
that are economic to run for us and our customers, that are fit for purpose and provide value for
money. It also means having value for money as an underlying theme and principle running
throughout our business.

Maximising the return on our assets

Maintaining good governance this means keeping our G1, V1 rating with the regulator and living
up to the highest standards of openness and integrity. It means having financial stability that stands
up to testing against potential distress and having an appropriate and robust framework for
managing risk.

OUR VALUES
The following are the values that act as our guiding principles. They determine how we behave
and act to deliver our Vision and Mission.

•
•

Caring. We care about people and we achieve results whatever the challenge
Responsive. We put customers first giving great service and doing what matters most
to customers

•

Passionate. We get it right first time

taking pride in what we do and always striving to

do better

•

Inclusive. We work together and value each other

acting with integrity, respect,

professionalism, empathy and commitment

•

Dynamic.

demonstrating a positive solution-orientated

attitude

•

Honest. We have high ethical values, standards and strong governance
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Financial Statements 2020
Muir Group Housing Association Ltd
Performance for the year under review

3.9m. The financial performance of the Group over the last
five years is contained in the table below (Fig 1.3). The table contains the summary results from the
sition together with key financial
indicators that are monitored on a regular basis. The overall position shown is one of strength and
stability which is one of our objectives stated on page 6.
Fig 1.3 Summary results

2020
£M

2019
£M

28.6

30.4

(22.2)

2018
£M

2017
£M

2016
£M

30.3

30.3

29.8

(21.0)

(20.5)

(19.9)

(21.7)

(0.2)

(2.1)

(1.7)

(1.9)

(1.5)

Surplus on sales of housing properties

0.5

0.6

0.3

0.4

0.5

Operating surplus

6.7

7.9

8.4

8.9

7.1

Net interest charge

(2.8)

(2.9)

(2.8)

(2.8)

(2.5)

3.9

5.0

5.6

6.1

4.6

217

211

208

206

202

Other fixed assets

3

4

4

3

3

Net current assets / (liabilities)

6

7

7

10

(1)

226

222

219

219

204

(155)

(155)

(160)

(165)

(157)

Defined benefit pension liability SHPS

(3)

(7)

-

-

-

Total net assets

68

60

59

54

47

Total reserves

68

60

59

54

47

2020

2019

2017

2016

Operating surplus as a % of turnover

23%

26%

28%

29%

24%

Net surplus as a % of turnover

14%

16%

19%

20%

15%

£4,160

£3,959

£3,834

£3,755

£4,113

257%

309%

302%

327%

321%

£12,690

£12,801

£13,692

£14,031

£13,139

20%

21%

22%

23%

26%

Statement of Comprehensive Income
Turnover
Operating expenditure
Cost of sales

Surplus for the year before tax

Financial Position
Housing properties

Total
Creditors due after one year

Fig 1.3
Statistics

Operating cost per home
Interest cover %
Debt per home
Gearing %

2018
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Performance for the year under review (continued)
Statement of comprehensive income
Surplus
•
•

Surplus for the year was £3.9m.
Of the surplus, £568k resulted from surpluses on asset sales. This included £496k on staircasing
sales, £71k from sales under the right to buy or acquire and the balance from other sales.

Income (major changes)
•
•
•
•

Total turnover was £1.8 million or 5.9% lower than in 2019.
Sales proceeds from shared ownership sales were £1.9 million lower than 2019.
Turnover from social housing lettings was up 0.7% despite the 1% reduction in rents applied in
April 2019 with the increase coming from new schemes.
The total comprehensive income for the year has increased from £899k in 2019 to £7.82m in
2020. In 2019 there were charges to initially recognise obligations under the Social Housing
Pension Scheme (SHPS) of £2.67m and actuarial losses of £1.4m. In contrast, in 2020 actuarial
gains of £3.95m have been recorded. The principal reason for the variation on actuarial gains
is due to assumptions for future CPI, RPI and increases in salaries, being approximately 0.7%
lower, in each case, at 31 March 2020 than was assumed at 31 March 2019 resulting in lower
liability.

Fig 1.4 Analysis of turnover

Expenditure (major changes)
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Total operating expenditure (excluding cost of sales and profit from sales) has increased by
£1,190k or 5.7%.
Management costs were £26k higher and service costs £30k higher.
Routine maintenance costs were £373k higher and planned maintenance £239k higher.
Major repairs expensed were £299k higher.
Bad debts rose by £82k.
Depreciation of housing properties rose by £314k.
Development administration costs were £196k lower.
Net interest costs were £51k lower than the previous year.
Factors affecting the general increase in cost have included the continuing need to ensure that
our stock is adequately maintained to the appropriate standard, that we continue to ensure fire
and other areas of safety are adequately addressed and that we ensure that service standards
to customers are maintained.
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Performance for the year under review (continued)
Fig 1.5 Analysis of Operating Expenditure (including cost of sales)

Statement of financial position
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Capital expenditure on additions to housing properties (including capitalised interest and
expenditure to existing properties) in the year was over £8m.
Capital expenditure on component replacements in housing properties was £3.1m.
The total cost of housing properties at historic costs (net of depreciation) is £216m.
Creditors falling due after one year (including deferred capital grants) now stand at £155m.
The defined benefit pension liability (SHPS) stands at £2.8m compared to a liability in 2019 of
£7.1m. The reduction arose due to changes in the underlying actuarial assumptions further
details of which can be found in note 11.
Accumulated reserves have risen from £60.2m and now total £68m.
No additional borrowings were drawn down from funders in the year and debt of £672k was
repaid.

Statistics explained:
The statistics for the group shown in the table at Fig 1.3 above are monitored on a regular basis by
the Board. Gearing and Interest C
The limit for Gearing (that is the proportion of net debt in relation to the historic cost of housing
properties) is that it should be no more than 45%. The data in Fig 1.3 indicates that gearing is currently
at 20% and is comfortably within the limit.
The limit for Interest Cover (that is adjusted operating surplus divided by the net charge for interest)
is that it should be at least 110%. The current Interest Cover is 257%. The Association continues to
operate effectively within the limit as illustrated by the chart in Fig 1.6.
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STRATEGIC REPORT FOR YEAR
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Performance for the year under review (continued)
Statistics explained (continued)
Fig 1.6 Interest Cover

Capital structure and treasury policy
The Group is financed by way of Social Housing Grants received from Government bodies, long term
loan facilities from banks, building societies, the bond market and retained reserves. The relative
proportions are shown in chart below (Fig 1.7)
Fig 1.7 Sources of funding

The primary purpose of our Treasury Strategy is to ensure the Group has sufficient finance facilities in
place to fund its commitments as and when they fall due, and to be able to deal with the risk of a
material increase in interest rates.
The strategy and policy are regularly updated in conjunction with
reviewed by the Board.
limits, the primary objective being the preservation of capital, as opposed to the maximisation of
returns.
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Performance for the year under review (continued)
Repayment structure of long term loan facilities
The Group is liable to repay the capital elements of its long-term loan facilities in line with the chart
shown below (Fig 1.8). Repayment is by way of a mixture of amortising (over the period of the loan
term) and bullet (single repayment at the end of the loan term) profiles.
The chart below (Fig 1.8) indicates when capital is due for repayment over the next thirty years. The
main bullet repayments are repayment of building society loans of £10m and £30m in 2027 and 2030
respectively.
Fig 1.8 Cumulative loan repayments

As at 31 March 2020 the Group had undrawn borrowing facilities in place of £22.5m (2019: £22.5m).
On the 22 April 2020, the Association extended its facilities by a further £15m which increased overall
facilities to £37.5m of which £10.6m was fully secured and capable of being drawn down at between
11.1m (2019: £12.5m).

Management of the cost of interest payable
contract variations. The interest costs arising can be variable (changeable in line with movements in
underlying interest rates) or fixed for a period according to the terms of those agreements.
to variable
costs of funds is targeted to be between 10% and 40% over the longer term. The proportion of debt
exposed to variable costs of funds at 31 March 2020 was 42.8%. The Group has plans to decrease its
exposure to variable rates by accessing long term capital debt markets before the end of the calendar
year.
Our weighted average cost of borrowing was calculated to be 3.53% (2019: 4.11%) for the year. This
has decreased due to lower interest rates and lower debt during the year.
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Value for money
Introduction
The Group is required to comply with the regulatory framework for the sector as issued by the
Regulator of Social Housing. The regulatory framework contains a specific standard dealing with
Value for Money (VFM) and how registered providers are expected to address this issue. The VFM
standard has been revised recently with a new standard published in April 2018. The standard sets
out the following required outcomes.

Registered providers must:
•
•
•
•

clearly articulate their strategic objectives
have an approach agreed by their Board to achieving VFM in meeting these objectives and
demonstrate their delivery of value for money to stakeholders
through their strategic objectives, articulate their strategy for delivering homes that meet a
range of needs
ensure that optimal benefit is derived from resources and assets and optimise economy,
efficiency and effectiveness in the delivery of their strategic objectives.

Specific expectations include the following:
Registered providers must demonstrate:
• a robust approach to achieving VFM this must include a robust approach to decision making
and a rigorous appraisal of potential options for improving performance
• regular and appropriate consideration by the board of potential VFM gains this must include
full consideration of costs and benefits of alternative commercial, organisational and delivery
structures
• consideration of VFM across their whole business and where they invest in non-social housing
activity, they should consider whether this generates returns commensurate to the risk
involved and justification where this is not the case
• that they have appropriate targets in place for measuring performance in achieving VFM in
delivering their strategic objectives, and that they regularly monitor and report their
performance against these targets.
Registered providers must publish evidence in statutory accounts to enable stakeholders to
understand the providers:
• Performance against its own VFM targets and any metrics set out by the regulator, and how
that performance compares to peers
• Measurable plans to address any areas of underperformance, including clearly stating any
areas where improvements would not be appropriate and the rationale for this.

How do we approach VFM?
The Group has adopted a Corporate Plan 2019-2021. This plan clearly articulates the
strategic objectives (see section on objectives and priorities). The strategic objectives identified
earlier are focused on improving our service offer to residents, delivering more homes, focusing on
improved value for money, driving efficiency, understanding and reducing operational costs,
understanding the return from our assets and improving those returns.

Strategy
Our strategic approach to VFM is therefore driven by this Corporate Plan and the strategic objectives
that are included. In addition, we have other strategies that complement the plan and these include
strategies for VFM, procurement and development.
All Board Members are aware of the regulatory requirements in respect of the VFM standard and the
expectations of our Regulator. They also understand how important it is for us to be able to assess
the financial and social return from our assets to achieve our objectives.
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Value for money (continued)
Responsibilities and ownership
Many of our staff have specific roles in monitoring and recording VFM, however we see it as an
i
(staff and board members) to work towards achieving VFM.
We have set specific targets for improving our VFM over time without compromise to the levels of
tenant satisfaction that we currently achieve. These include improving our levels of resident
satisfaction and reducing our operating cost per unit.

Reporting and communication
The Board see it as essential that all our stakeholders, staff, board members, residents, leaseholders
and partners receive regular information on our progress and performance. This is achieved by a
variety of means including regular monthly and quarterly reports to Board and residents through our
intranet, our website, and staff team meetings.

Value for money metrics
As part of the regulatory standard the Group is required to publish the metrics set out in Fig 1.9
below. The data has been calculated in accordance with Annex A of the Value for Money Technical
Note issued with the Value for Money Standard.
The definitions for each of the metrics contained in the table were published in April 2018 following
consultation with the sector. This data will be used on a regular basis to compare our performance
to the sector and our peers.

Fig 1.9 Value for money metrics

Muir
2020

Muir
2019^

Median
2019^

Muir
2018^

1

Reinvestment %

5.16%

4.1%

6.2%

3.7%

2

New supply delivered %

1.03%

0.7%

1.4%

1.2%

3

Gearing %

30.2%

31.8%

43.4%

34.6%

4

EBITDA MRI *

257%

286%

184%

319%

5

Headline social housing cost per unit

£3,740

£3,546

£3,610

£3,472

6A Operating margin % social housing

23.6%

28.0%

29.1%

29.4%

6B Operating margin % overall

21.4%

23.7%

25.8%

26.8%

7

2.95%

3.4%

3.8%

3.8%

Return on capital employed (ROCE)

*EBITDA MRI = Earnings Before Interest, Tax, Depreciations, Amortisation, Major Repairs including Interest Cover
^ Data taken from Regulator of Social Housing published Value for Money Metrics

Fig 1.9 shows the comparative data for the sector for the year ending 31 March 2019. The data shown
is for all returns and shows the median results.
% to 5.16% and
reflects continued investment in new housing provision and increased investment in major repairs.
The new supply % improved in 2020 from 0.7% to 1.03% after a fall in 2019 and is reflective of the
This still falls below the sector median of 1.4% in 2019.
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Value for money (continued)
Gearing has fallen slightly and now stands at 30.2% compared to the sector mean of 43.4% indicating
that there is capacity for further borrowings to meet the Boards objective of building more homes.
EBITDA MRI is down from 286% to 257% reflecting falling rents and increasing costs, however it is
still quite a lot higher than the sector median indicating the relative financial strength of the Group.
Operating margins have fallen year on year for the last two years and are reflective of falling rents
and increasing costs. The sector has experienced similar falls.
Return on Capital Employed (ROCE) has fallen for the last two years from 3.8% in 2018 to 2.95% in
2020, compared to the sector median for 2019 of 3.8%. This is again indicative of falling rents and
increasing costs and is sector wide.
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Value for money (continued)

The Group
on sector scorecard metrics is included in the table at Fig 1.10. The table
also includes the median score of the peer group we have selected for comparison. The table shows
where the
performance sits in terms of quartiles. There is some repetition of indicators in
Figures 1.9 and 1.10 but they are included in each so that a complete set of both can be taken together.
Fig 1.10 Sector scorecard
Business Health
Operating margin
Operating margin (social housing lettings)
EBITDA
Development capacity and supply
Units developed

Actual
2020

Actual
2019

Peers
2019

Quartile
2019

21.4%

24.0%

26%

3Q

24.0%

28.0%

28.8%

3Q

257%

286%

182%

UQ

55

34

76

3Q

1.0%

0.6%

1.2%

3Q

Gearing

26.0%

26.7%

42%

UQ

Outcomes delivered
Customer satisfaction with services provided by landlord

85.6%

85.2%

84.0%

2Q

Effective asset management
Return on capital employed (ROCE)

3.00%

3.5%

3.3%

2Q

Occupancy

99.0%

99.6%

99.5%

2Q

Units developed as a % of units owned

Ratio of responsive repairs to planned maintenance

75%

90%

67%

LQ

Operating efficiencies
Rent collected

100.4%

99.07%

99.70%

LQ

Overheads as a % of turnover

12.86%

13.69%

11.74%

3Q

Headline social housing cost per units

£3,740

£3,546

£3,623

2Q

£1,003

£1,003

£957

3Q

£459

£456

£502

2Q

£932

£977

2Q

•

Management

•

Service charge

•

Maintenance

£1,041

•

Major repairs

£1,070

£955

£765

LQ

£168

£200

£234

2Q

•

Other

UQ = Upper quartile

2 Q = second quartile

3 Q = third quartile

LQ = Lower quartile
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Value for money (continued)

The table in Fig 1.10 shows that for 2018/19 the Group performed in the bottom quartile for rent
collection, however collection has improved in 2019/20. Spend on major repairs is higher than our
peers which reflects the level of investment being made into our existing stock.
The expenditure incurred on major repairs is based on our stock condition survey and reflects what
we believe is the appropriate level of investment required to maintain our homes to the appropriate
standard. Nevertheless, we will continue to use techniques in our procurement processes to ensure
that we obtain value for money.
The Board has approved a plan to increase the investment in new supply with the number of
completions included in the Financial Plan over the next five years set out in the table at Fig 1.11
below. Delivery of these plans is dependent upon being able to locate appropriate sites or schemes
at suitable prices.
It is unclear why the Associations ratio of response repairs maintenance and major repairs are higher
than that of others in the sector. The Board will conduct a review during the year to better understand
the reasons why this is the case.
Fig 1.11 Plans for new housing supply
Tenure
For rent
For shared ownership
Total

2021

2022

2023

2024

2025

Total

160

255

255

255

260

1185

23

27

30

30

30

140

183

282

285

285

290

1325

Occupancy levels have slipped from 99.6% in 2019 to 99% in 2020. This reflects a small number of
units that were being subject to redevelopment or viability assessment.
The table
Accounts 2019. The data disclosed shows the performance of the sector overall showing costs
broken down into constituent parts and detailing the lower, median, upper quartile and weighted
average levels. The table then goes on to compare the results for the Group for 2019 and 2020.
The Group
9 were 86.23% of the sector average. Costs have risen in
2020 to £3.741k per unit, from £3.550k in 2019, an increase of 5.3% due primarily to other costs,
major repairs and management costs. It is also relevant to consider that the Group
supported housing is higher than the average for the sector and that supported housing is recognised
as a factor that gives rise to increased costs per unit.
The Group will continue to use this data to assess progress against achieving our objectives and the
relative cost of doing so in relation to our peers.
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Fig 1.12 RSH cost data (CPU = cost per unit in £’000)

CPU / consolidated
2019
Lower quartile

Headline
social
housing
CPU
3.180

Management
CPU

Service
charge
CPU

Maintenance
CPU

Other social
housing
costs CPU

4.118

1.045

0.626

1.965

0.480

3.550

1.000

0.460

1.890

0.200

86.23%

95.69%

73.48%

96.18%

41.58%

3.741

1.003

0.459

2.111

0.168

90.87%

95.98%

73.32%

107.43%

34.93%

Median

3.690

Upper quartile

4.690

Weighted average
Muir 2019
Muir % of 2019 sector average
Muir 2020
Muir % of 2019 sector average

In 2020, the Group has continued to review key areas of business to ensure it is achieving value for
money. Reviews in progress include looking at contract procurement, the digitisation of services to
customers, technical integration with contractors and reviews of internal processes within the Group.
A key strand of our asset management policy is to look at each housing scheme to assess if they are
still providing the appropriate level of value in relation to cost and to assess whether this can be
improved, or an alternative solution found such as regeneration and remodelling, finding an
alternative use or selling and reinvesting the proceeds.
The Group
is designed to measure the relative performance of the Group
investment. The model includes measures of current and future income and costs for each scheme
including stock condition, location, profitability and social factors.
This model has been populated and the results analysed. The model has identified the relative
performance of the Group
to performance and those that perform poorly relative to the remainder of the stock or below a
certain level are subject to further analysis and full options appraisal as to future use. An action plan
to deal with the poorly performing schemes has been developed. Bearing in mind the nature of our
assets and the need to consult residents, delivery of alternative options through reductions in cost
or realisation of sales proceeds will take several years.
To make the model even more informative we will look to assess the current alternative or open
market value for each of our assets to assist in highlighting the optimum use for each asset, whether
that be continued use in the business or disposal and reinvestment.
We will ensure that we have up to date registers on all our assets, and liabilities. This will allow the
Board to have a full appreciation of their use in the business, their alternative use and how best they
can be used to cover risk and be realised or accessed in times of stress.
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How we compare on operational performance

Void levels have been consistent from year to year and are slightly above the sector average. Bad
debts have increased from 0.8% to 1.1% this year compared to the sector average of 0.8%. There has,
however been a steady improvement in the level of current tenant rent arrears which stand at 3.5%
for 2020 which is now better than the sector average for the previous year.
Fig 1.13. Operational performance
Indicator
Voids
Muir
Sector average
Bad debts
Muir
Sector average
Current tenant arrears
Muir
Sector average

2020

2019

2018

2017

2016

1.6%
n/a

1.6%
1.5%

1.6%
1.5%

1.4%
1.4%

1.6%
1.5%

1.1%
n/a

0.8%
0.8%

1.2%
0.8%

1.1%
0.7%

1.4%
0.7%

3.5%
n/a

4.1%
4.7%

4.4%
4.4%

5.0%
4.4%

4.1%
4.6%

Source: Voids and bad debts RSH Global Accounts 2019
Global Accounts of Housing Providers, averages taken are for traditional providers whenever available. n/a = not available.
Arrears from financial statements as adjusted for cash notified for payment by housing benefits prior year end but received
after date.

Fig 1.14. Resident satisfaction levels
Area of satisfaction

Direction
of Travel

2020

2019

Muir

Peers

Q

Muir

Peers

Q

Overall service provided

=

85%

79%

Q2

85%

79%

Q2

Overall quality of home

=

87%

84%

UQ

87%

84%

UQ

Your neighbourhood as a place
to live

=

88%

83%

UQ

88%

83%

UQ

91%

85%

UQ

94%

85%

UQ

82%

68%

UQ

82%

73%

UQ

The way we deal with repairs

77%

75%

Q2

80%

75%

Q2

We listen to your views and act
upon them

76%

67%

UQ

77%

67%

UQ

55%

26%

UQ

55%

31%

UQ

Your rent provides VFM
Your service charge provides
VFM

=

Overall net promoter score

=

Source: HouseMark STAR Survey benchmarking portal. % for Peers represents performance to achieve upper quartile.

Key:

Upper quartile

UQ

Second quartile

2Q

Improving

Third quartile

3Q

Lower quartile

LQ

Reducing

Fig 1.14 shows resident satisfaction levels for the Group together with those of our selected peer group.
We continue to be in the upper quartile of performers in 6 of the 8 items measured. Our satisfaction
levels are the same in 5 areas and have reduced slightly in 3
satisfaction relative to our peers continues to be good.
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Value for money (continued)
Operational initiatives
During the year the Group merged the ICT Team with the Project Management Team to create a new
Business Transformation and Technology Team. The purpose was to better integrate the teams and
to streamline the delivery of essential updates across a range of transformational programmes briefly
described below.
One of our major operational programmes is our Customer Experience Transformation Programme
(CETP). The vision of
will be underpinned by
the following objectives:
•
•
•
•
•

Connecting people by encouraging and supporting customer to access services in a
variety of ways making best use of technology.
Deliver the right services in the best way to customers providing efficient and effective
services by reducing failure demand and non-added value activity.
Meeting expectations of customers providing services that enable customers to
contact us when and how they want.
Creating a supportive culture across the organisation, that puts customers first,
supporting those who need our help most.
Protecting our business building resilience by creating a more agile and flexible
customer experience, whilst reducing transaction costs and achieving value for money.

The Group has commissioned a 100% stock condition survey to be performed by independent
surveyors. This survey will be maintained on our Keystone Asset Management System that is being
further developed to allow the Property Services Team to accurately plan future liabilities and to
profile major repairs programmes in the most efficient manner.
Work is also progressing on improving integration with all our contractors to remove duplications, to
improve appointment services to customers and to improve overall efficiencies.
A new staff intranet is also being designed, an element of which has been the introduction of Microsoft
Teams. This software has been an essential part of working from home for staff and conducting Board
and Committee meeting during lockdown. This facility has helped us maintain services and reduce
cost and time normally spent on travel and allowed resources to be directed towards areas of
increased activity to support our customers through the current crisis.
and sustainable to customers and the Group, thus protecting customer satisfaction and the social and
economic value of the relevant assets. The result is a new brand, Muir Living, which aims to position
provides a
positive lifestyle choice for people over 60.
Muir Living has been developed around the four key elements:
•

Affordable, modern facilities

•

Supporting customers to get the most out of life

•

Reassurance to live independently through personal, modern technology

•

Helping residents to enjoy life and stay connected in the community
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The Muir Living brand which has been developed in close consultation with the National Residents
Group will be rolled out across the Associations four, Independent Living Schemes of Tweedsmuir
(Chester), Smithy Court (Ellesmere Port), Fusilier Court (Bury) and McCartney House (Huntingdon)
over the remainder of the year subject to limitations caused by the current pandemic.

Conclusion of the Board in respect to Value for Money
Considering the significant achievements, initiatives and planned actions, detailed above, the Board
believe that the self-assessment shows that we fully comply with the Regulator for Social Housings
Value for Money Standard.
This Self-Assessment is open and honest and shows that the Group has made good progress. The
overall VFM process is cyclical and we recognise that the quest to improve is never complete. We
are passionate about improving our performance and will continue to improve our efficiency.
Areas that we are focused on improving and the linked initiatives are:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Improving resident satisfaction levels across the full range of areas measured. Linked to, CETP
and Muir Living.
Transforming the way in which we engage and transact with our residents. Linked to CEPT and
Muir Living.
Controlling our management costs per unit. Linked to CETP and contractor integration.
Controlling our operating and headline social housing cost per unit. Linked to CETP and
contractor integration.
Reducing the level of bad debts and void losses. Linked to CETP and Muir Living.
Improving the efficiency levels within our asset management services, internally and interfacing
with contractors. Linked to the 100% stock condition survey and contractor integration.
Improving returns from our assets either through remodelling or by sale and re-investment of
the proceeds. Linked to the 100% stock condition survey.

We consider our systems and processes allow us to be re-assured that we will improve our offer to
residents in terms of delivering value for money services. We also consider that the majority of our
assets are delivering an acceptable return albeit one which could be improved by a focus on cost
and that the systems we have in place will identify those assets that are not performing and that
appropriate action will be taken to correct the position.
We will ensure that where appropriate key stakeholders are provided with a copy of the Financial
Statements directly and that it is clearly signposted from a variety of sources. Information will be
provide
statement will be clear. Copies will be provided on request for those who cannot access it online.
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Reaction to the Covid- 19 Pandemic

events. This involved the following actions:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Postponing all non-contractual development programmes
Postponing all new major repairs programmes
Freezing new recruitment
Restricting discretionary expenditure
Putting maintenance and repair operatives who had no work on the Government furlough
scheme (on full pay)
Implementing a working from home programme for all employees
Performed a full review of how operations and finances were affected by the pandemic
including all aspect of health and safety and well-being for customers, staff and contractors.
Set up a multidisciplinary team to have daily meetings to deal with Government guidance and
emerging issues as and when they presented themselves. Ensuring communications to
customers, staff and contractors were clear and timely.
Set up a team to monitor income collection and voids levels on a weekly basis including daily
monitoring of cancellations of direct debits from customers.
Enhanced the income services team to assist customers to pay their rent.

reintroduce services in a structured and safe way following Government guidance and best practice.
This has included the following actions:
•
•
•
•
•

Taking repair operatives off furlough
Remobilisation of the response and voids maintenance team making sure staff and customers
are protected to the highest possible standards
Gradually introducing major repairs programmes in phases but keeping sufficient levels of
expenditure back to protect against any deterioration in the financial position
Ensured a safe working environment for all staff wherever they carry out their duties
Produced a plan to enable the Groups offices to be reopened, safely in phases and at safe
occupancy levels.

It is encouraging to note that income collection held up well during the period since lockdown.
Arrears have increased since a record low at the end of March 2020 but are still within levels
experienced in the previous two years. In the early period of lockdown there was a noticeable
increase in voids as a halt to repairs and lettings was in place. Void property numbers at 31 March
were 61, which is a typical level, and rose to 112 by the end of June. Since the easing of lockdown
void property numbers have reduced to 80 and expected to be back to normal levels by the end of
September.
The Board are conscious that the future remains uncertain and at present continue to be cautious
and prepare for a second wave of the virus and the potential effects of economic disruption. The
Board are ready to reinvoke the full Recovery Plan immediately should the need arise.
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Risks
The Board have assessed the following risks as those which, should they occur, are likely to have a
significant effect on future performance and the Group
RISK

EFFECT AND ACTION BEING TAKEN

Rise in final
salary
pension
scheme
liabilities

The Group has seen significant rises in the level of contributions required to
fund liabilities for defined benefit pensions schemes and this exposure still
exists.

Government
policy on
rents

The rent reductions announced in the 2015 Budget have been fully factored
into our long-term financial plans, which show that we can remain financially
viable with a considerable headroom above lenders covenants.

The Group has reduced its exposure by closing all defined benefit schemes to
new entrants and by transferring existing employees from 1/60th and 1/80th
schemes to 1/120th CARE schemes. New employees are offered membership of
a defined contribution scheme. The Board reviews this exposure on a regular
basis and seeks professional actuarial advice when required.
Financial Plan has anticipated further increases in pensions deficits.

The announcement by the Government that rents will be allowed to increase
by CPI + 1% for five years from 2020 has reduced the likelihood of this issue
arising. However, policy can change quickly and the Group understands the
effect on its Financial Plan of any changes in income levels.
Welfare
benefit
reform

The Government has introduced significant changes to the welfare benefit
system that will affect the income of many of our residents. The main risk for
us and our residents is that total benefit income will be reduced, leaving
tenants with less spare resource to pay their rent. The introduction of direct
payments to residents rather than to landlords has the potential to increase
rent arrears and collection costs.
We are dealing with this by continuing to implement our welfare reform action
plan to assist residents through the change. Our Income Services Officers are
working closely with residents to assist with rehousing, claiming Discretionary
Housing Payments or assisting with budget planning.

Exposure to
the housing
market

Changes in market conditions expose the Group to additional costs or charges
for impairment; these may affect financial performance and stability.
We continue to take great care in selecting only those sites that we believe
will sell quickly with bespoke marketing plans for each development. We
monitor competition and market movements where we operate and keep a
close watch on the availability of mortgage finance for our customers.
We are also limiting our total exposure so that any adverse movement in
conditions does not materially compromise financial stability.

Contractor
performance
failure

Essential services that the Group provides to our residents, such as gas safety
checks, are delivered by third part contractors. We have seen instances
across the economy where contractors have experienced difficulties and in
some cases failed. If this were to occur then this could have serious impact on
our residents.
To reduce the likelihood of this happening financial stability checks are carried
out on our contractors on a regular basis. Contingency plans are also
prepared to provide stand in arrangements, at short notice, should these be
required.
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Risks (continued)
RISK
Health and
safety

EFFECT AND ACTION BEING TAKEN
A major or series of health and safety incident(s) causing a serious threat to
safety, injury or death would have serious reputational and cost implications.
This could include loss of homes to flood, fire or another serious incident.
We have detailed policies and procedures designed to help mitigate these
risks and to respond to any incident in an appropriate manner placing the
needs of residents as our number one priority. We ensure these are
embedded in our culture and are adhered to. We supplement them with
external expert reviews and advice and a structured training and education
programme for all relevant staff. We also maintain an in-house professional
expertise that is available to provide advice and support.
Group has reviewed its
accommodation. The Group does not have any high-rise blocks or stock clad
in aluminium composite material.

The risks included below have been identified by the Board as having the potential
to have a significant impact but where the residual impact is reduced because of
controls in place.
Covid-19

The pandemic restrictions primarily affect our ability to deliver front line
services to our customers, may affect income from all our business streams,
and may limit access to capital.
In response, we have regular meetings at all levels of the business to react to
the latest Government law, guidelines and best practice. We ensure that
communications across the business are timely and accurate. Staff are
encouraged and have the ability in most cases to work effectively from home
with all the necessary equipment provided. Front line staff are provided with
guidance on safe ways of working and PPE to meet the requirements. We have
programmes to ensure that all staff are supported with their needs.
Maintenance activities are carried out in accordance with the latest guidance.
Income is monitored on a weekly basis. Significant cash balances and facilities
are maintained and potential access to capital market kept under review.

BREXIT

Now that the country has voted to exit the European Union there may be a
material divergence in respect of the underlying economic assumptions
adopted within the Group financial plan. These could be in the form of
changing interest rates, inflation rates, stock market movements, laws, tax
rates etc.
Whilst it is not possible to make reliable predictions the Group has performed
sensitivity analysis on its financial plan that allows it to understand how it will
be affected by the changing circumstances. Regular reviews of the plan will
allow the Group to amend its plan accordingly as information becomes
available. The Group has set aside sufficient cash and facilities to cover our
known Financial Plan contractual commitments. Assurances have been sought
from suppliers that adequate stocks are maintained of key items and spare
parts. The Group employs few EU nationals.
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Risks (continued)
RISK
Liquidity/
funding

EFFECT AND ACTION BEING TAKEN
If access to long term funding at acceptable costs were restricted this would
brought about by changes due to the Brexit negotiations.
Access to funding seems to have stabilised after the credit crunch, but a
legacy of higher margins and stricter covenants remain. Recently there have
been signs of greater appetite to fund housing associations through banking
and bond products. The Group has significant agreed facilities available to
fund its medium-term requirements.

Rising
interest rates

Following the long period of unusually low interest rates there is inevitably an
expectation that rates will rise in the future though the timing is subject to
speculation.
The Group has a strategy to limit its risk by utilising existing fixed rate
agreements, and by having access to long term fixed rate funding. The
Group
-term financial plan are also prepared using much
higher interest rates.

Performance
failure

Failure to deliver services to our customers at the appropriate level could
seriously jeopardise our reputation with our customers and the regulator.
Failure to deliver our agreed development programme could lead to
withdrawal of capital grant.
We do regular satisfaction surveys with our customers and monitor
performance closely. We take corrective action when results show
deterioration in performance.
The Board monitors performance against the agreed development programme
on an on-going basis.

Inflation

A sustained increase in inflationary pressures on the Group
ts, if not
controlled adequately could undermine the Financial Plan. The upcoming exit
activities.
The Group thus seeks to make efficiency gains to off-set any inflationary
increases.

Information
technology
risks

We are currently renewing our intranet and other software systems.
Projects like this, if not managed properly, bring with them risks of systems
outages and failures. We counter this by applying rigorous project
management techniques and risk analysis and employ suitably qualified
professionals to assist us where skills are not available in house. We also
operate a system of off-site back-up that is regularly tested.
Recent events have highlighted that all organisations are at risk of exposure to
malicious attacks such as ransomware attacks. We invest in regular
independent penetration testing to check that our systems are as secure as
they can be and have a rigorous process of applying patches and updates on a
regular prompt basis.
Loss of our main head office building would present a significant risk of
disruption to services. We protect this by running back- up systems at a
separate location and have standby office space available should the need
arise.
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Risks (continued)
RISK

EFFECT AND ACTION BEING TAKEN

Serious loss
of sensitive
or personal
data

The implementation of the General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR) came
in to effect in May 2018. A serious breach of the regulations can lead to
substantial fines and reputational damage.

Noncompliance
with
regulatory
standards

Failure to comply could lead to regulatory downgrade which would affect the
Group
funding markets.

We have invested in expertise to help us develop new policies, procedures and
controls to minimise the risk of a serious breach occurring. We have
implemented a specific GDPR training and awareness regime across all areas
of the business.

The
Board is briefed and trained on governance issues and obtain
regular professional advice on its approach to complying with regulation.

The Group
appraisal that is periodically updated as new risks are identified. The risks are compared to those
identified by the Regulator for Social Housing and in publications based on analysis of the sector
risks. This analysis is then used to concentrate resources on managing those risks that are of relatively
high importance. In addition to the above, for each specific risk a control and monitoring procedure
or procedures are identified and responsibility for the effective operation of these is allocated to a
member of staff. Each quarter the risk appraisal is updated and reviewed by the Group Audit and
Risk Committee.

Employment and Equal Opportunities
The Group considers that employee involvement is essential to the continuing development and
success of its business and uses a variety of methods to inform, consult and involve its employees.
The Group is committed to equality of opportunity and its employment policies reflect this.
e Tag
elected where appropriate. This Group and the staff generally are consulted on the Corporate Plan
prior to its publication and their views are obtained where appropriate. The Tag Team meets at least
four times a year but can meet more often if required.
The Group has a formal policy on disability and will implement, as far as practicable, the Employment
We have a programme of training events for all staff. We promote an activity fund where the Group
will contribute half the cost (up to £100) towards an activity or course chosen by the member of
staff. We have also introduced a fund to sponsor staff raising funds for charity through sponsored
events or activities.
The Group has been awarded the Gold standard by Investors in People and been awarded a Good
Practice Award for Health and Wellbeing.

Health and Safety and the Environment
The Board and Officers of the Group are aware of their responsibilities in relation to all matters of
health, safety and the environment. Detailed policies have been prepared on health and safety and
provide for staff training and education on such matters. The Group aims to manage its activities so
that adverse effects on the environment are minimised.
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and by whom an organisation is run. It includes the laws and regulations the organisation must
comply with together with the structures put in place internally to meet compliance.
The Group is governed by a Board of Management. This is composed of nine non-executive members,
plus the Chief Executive. The Association is managed by an Executive Management Team headed by
the Chief Executive and supported by two Directors: Resources and Operations.
The Board Members and Executive Management Team are listed on page 2. Non-executive Board
members hold a £1 fully paid share in the Association. The Executive Management Team does not
hold an interest in the
of the non-executive Board Members is also a
tenant of the Group. One of the retiring Board members was also a tenant of the Group.
In addition to the above, the Group has a Group Audit and Risk Committee that has detailed terms
of reference and is responsible for overseeing the internal control framework including internal audit
and risk management. In addition, there is a Group Human Resources & Governance Committee,
again operating under detailed terms of reference.
Fig 1.15 Group Board and Committee membership and attendance at Board
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Alison Greaves
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Catherine Dixson

✓
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6/6

Chair
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6/6
3/6

✓


(Resigned
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Peter McHugh

MPS Ltd
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January 2020)

Deputy
Chairman
✓

Group HR &
Governanc
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✓

Chairman

Peter Fieldsend

Susan Kearns

Group Audit &
Risk


(Resigned
31/08/19)

3/3

Chair

6/6

✓

4/6

Chair
(Appointed
01/02/20)

3/3
3/6

✓

3/6

✓

6/6

Andrew Hunt

✓

Barry Brussels

✓
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Statement of the responsibilities of the Board for the report and financial statements
The board is responsible for preparing the report and financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulations.
Co-operative and Community Benefit Society legislation requires the board to prepare financial
statements for each financial year. Under that law the board have elected to prepare the financial
statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United
Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable laws), including FRS 102 The Financial Reporting
Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland. Under the Co-operative and Community
Benefit Society legislation the board must not approve the financial statements unless they are
satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs and surplus or deficit of the
association and group for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the board are required
to:
• select suitable accounting policies and apply them consistently;
• make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
• state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards and the Statement of Recommended
Practice (SORP) Accounting by Registered Housing Providers 2018, have been followed,
subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements;
and
• prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to
presume that the association will continue in business.
The board is responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable
accuracy at any time the financial position of the group and association and enable it to ensure that
the financial statements comply with the Co-operative and Community Benefit Societies Act 2014,
the Housing and Regeneration Act 2008 and the Accounting Direction for Private Registered
Providers of Social Housing 2019. It is also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the association
and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other
irregularities.
The board are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial
information included on the association's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the
preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other
jurisdictions.

Regulatory compliance
and comply with an appropriate code of governance. They shall give the reasons for their choice
and explain areas of non-compliance with
having considered several potentially suitable codes of governance.
by the Board because it was considered the most relevant a
circumstances
and the most familiar, being an update of the Code that has been used successfully for a number of
years.
guidelines and considers there to
be full compliance.
Code and made a commitment to uphold the code and adhere to high standards of conduct. The
Board has assessed the Group
compliance.
Resident involvement in decision making is a key objective of the Group. As part of this objective
the Group has reviewed the way in which it involves residents and has recently established a
National Residents Group who will develop resident involvement and scrutiny over the coming
months.
The Board considers that it is able to
Governance and Financial Viability Standard. The Regulator of Social Housing has currently assessed
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the Group as G1 V1. The Association has recently undergone an In-Depth Assessment by the
Regulator the results of which were confirmation that they retained their G1 V1, status.

Statement of Compliance with the Statement of Recommended Accounting Practice
The Board confirms that this Strategic Report has been prepared in accordance with applicable
reporting standards and legislation.

Board Statement on Internal Control
The Board has overall responsibility for establishing and maintaining the whole system of internal
control and reviewing its effectiveness. This applies to the Association and its subsidiary.
The Board recognises that no system of internal control can provide absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss, or eliminate all risks of failure to achieve business objectives. The
system of internal control is designed to manage key risks and to provide reasonable assurance that
planned business objectives and outcomes are achieved. It also exists to give reasonable assurance
about the preparation and reliability of financial and operational information and the safeguarding of
In meeting its responsibilities, the Board has adopted a risk-based approach to internal controls,
which are embedded within the normal management and governance process. This approach
includes the regular evaluation of the nature and extent of risks to which the Association is exposed.
This process adopted by the Board in reviewing the effectiveness of the system of internal control,
together with some of the key elements of the control framework includes:

Identification and evaluation of key risks
Management responsibility has been clearly defined for the identification, evaluation and control of
significant risks. There is a formal and ongoing process of management review in each area of the
Associat
xecutive team regularly considers and receives reports on significant
risks facing the Association and the Executive Director Resources reports to the Board any significant
changes affecting key risks.

Fraud risk management
There are policies and procedures to minimise the potential occurrence of fraud and to investigate
fraud when it occurs.

Control environment and procedures
The Board retains responsibility for a defined range of issues covering strategic, operational, and
financial and compliance issues including treasury strategy and new investment projects. The Board
has adopted and disseminated to all employees a Code of Conduct for Employees. This sets out the
s policies with regard to quality, integrity and ethics. It is supported by a framework of policies,
procedures and standing orders with which employees must comply. These cover issues such as
delegated authority, segregation of duties, accounting, treasury management, health and safety, data
and asset protection and fraud prevention and detection.

Information and financial reporting systems
Financial reporting procedures include detailed budgets for the year ahead and detailed quarterly
management accounts and monthly forecasts for the remainder of the year. These are reviewed in
detail by the Executive Directors and are considered and approved by the Board. The Board also
regularly reviews key performance indicators to assess progress towards the achievement of key
business objectives, targets and outcomes.

Monitoring and corrective action
A process of control, self-assessment and regular management reporting on control issues provides
hierarchical assurance to successive levels of management and to the Board. This includes a rigorous
procedure for ensuring that corrective action is taken in relation to any significant control issues,
particularly those that may have a material impact on the financial statements and delivery of our
services.
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Internal Audit Assurance
The internal control framework and the risk management process are subject to regular review by
Internal Auditors who advise the Executive Directors and report to the Group Audit and Risk
Committee. The Group Audit and Risk Committee consider internal control and risk at each of its
meetings during the year.
The Group Audit and Risk Committee conducts an annual review of the effectiveness of the system
of internal control and takes account of any changes that may be needed to maintain the
effectiveness of the risk management and controls process. The Group Audit and Risk Committee
makes an annual report to the Board. The Board has received this report.
The Board confirms that there is an ongoing process for identifying and managing significant risks
faced by the Group. This process has been in place throughout the year under review, up to the date
of approval of the annual report and financial statements and is regularly reviewed by the Board.
The Executive Director Resources reports annually to the Board on behalf of the Executive team on
material changes in the business and the external environment that affect significant risks.

Going Concern
concern is based on consideration of cash flow forecasts that have been updated for the period to
31 March 2022 to take account of the anticipated effects of Covid-19 and subjected to severe, but
plausible, downside sensitivities.
The Covid-19 outbreak has become a global pandemic, moving from an emerging risk to becoming
a principal risk for Muir Group. However, as detailed on page 21, the Group has acted swiftly to put
controls in place to mitigate the effects as far as possible.
The challenges to be faced in the year 2020/2021 due to Covid-19 and the affect that this will have
on some sources of income and costs have been assessed in detail. The Board has considered the
impact on each of its businesses as part of their assessment. The affordable housing business is
anticipated to remain resilient, with continuing strong demand for good quality affordable housing
stock, though the economic fall-out from the Government measures to control the virus will affect
our tenants. The development and maintenance elements of the business has seen a slowdown in
on-term strategic aim of increasing
housing supply is unchanged, it is acknowledged that this will have a short-term impact on the timing
and delivery of development plans.
The Group has considered whether any adjustments are required to balances within the Financial
Statements due to Covid-19; in particular, the effects have been incorporated into property
impairment testing and the review of inventory carrying value and have been considered when
establishing expected credit loss provisions for receivables. Cash flow forecasts covering a period of
two years have been updated for the impact of Covid-19 and detailed severe but plausible downside
sensitivity testing performed, along with mitigating options such as delaying expenditure on
uncommitted developments. The conclusion of this assessment was that, even after taking account
of the impact of Covidty position remains robust, it has sufficient cash, due to
a healthy cash position, undrawn facilities and a new enhanced facility post year end to more than
meet its needs for the going concern assessment period and it will continue to meet all of its
borrowing covenants.
Having assessed the principal risks as set out on pages 22 to 25, the above mentioned sensitivities
and other matters discussed in connection with the viability statement below, the Group Board
considers that the Group and the Association have adequate resources to remain in operation for
the foreseeable future, have sufficient cash to meet their needs for the foreseeable future, being at
least 12 months from the approval of these financial statements, and will continue to meet all
borrowing covenants. The Group Board has therefore continued to adopt the going concern basis in
preparing the Financial Statements.
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Viability Statement
During the year the Group Board has assessed the viability of the Group in line with the business
plan. This assessment has been made through the business planning process which takes account of
, which are detailed on pages 22 to 25.
The Group Board has determined that the period to 31 March 2022 is an appropriate period over
which to provide its viability statement. While the Group Board believes that Muir Group will be viable
over a much longer period, this period has been chosen as it has a much greater degree of certainty.
The business plannin
review of external factors. The operational plans provide long-term direction and are reviewed on at
least an annual basis. The base strategy is tested through rigorous sensitivity analysis and stress
testing using a series of robust downside financial scenarios which result in a financial impact. The
testing also identifies the principal risks that may adversely impact the Group which include
operational, political, business, liquidity, market and credit risk. The results of the testing ensure
potential mitigating actions are appropriately developed.
Due to the inherent uncertainty involved in all business planning, it is not possible for the review to
consider every risk that the Group may face. However, the Group Board considers that the stress
financial viability. These risks include the expected impact of welfare reform on our tenants, further
reductions in social rents, uncertainty around Brexit and the impact of Covid-19. Also, key is the
maintenance the Groups assets and liabilities register and risk management processes that flow
th
and operations.
The Group has strong liquidity in place, has substantial unused security capacity, and is able to
refinance any debt due over the period. The Group Board has therefore concluded, based on the
extent of the business planning process and strong financial position, that there is a reasonable
expectation the Group and the Association have adequate resources and will continue to operate
and meet their liabilities as they fall due over the period of their assessment. The Group Board can
also confirm that it has complied with the Governance and Financial Viability Standard set out by the
RSH. During the year,
the RSH gave Muir Group ratings for
Governance and Viability of G1 and V1 respectively (2019: G1 and V1).

Auditors
All the current Board members have taken steps that they ought to have taken to ensure they are
their audit, and to
establish that the auditor is aware of that information. The Board members are not aware of any
relevant audit information of which the auditors are not aware.

By Order of the Board

David Gardiner
Chair
Date: 24 September 2020
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Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of Muir Group
for the year ended 31 March 2020, which comprise
the Group and Association Statements of Comprehensive Income, Group and Association
Statements of Financial Position, the Group and Association Statements of Changes in Reserves,
the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows and notes to the financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been
applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards including
Financial Reporting Standard 102; The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and
Republic of Ireland (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).
In our opinion the financial statements:
•
•

airs as at
31 March 2020
the year then ended;
have been properly prepared in accordance with the Co-operative and Community
Benefit Societies Act 2014, the Housing and Regeneration Act 2008, and the Accounting
Direction for Private Registered Providers of Social Housing 2019.

Basis for opinion
We have been appointed as auditor under the Co-operative and Community Benefit Societies Act
2014 and report in accordance with regulations made under that Act. We conducted our audit in
accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our
audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Association in
accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

The impact of macro-economic uncertainties arising on our audit
Our audit of the financial statements requires us to obtain an understanding of all relevant
uncertainties, including those arising as a consequence of the effects of macro-economic
uncertainties such as Covid-19 and Brexit. All audits assess and challenge the reasonableness of
estimates made by the directors and the related disclosures and the appropriateness of the going
concern basis of preparation of the financial statements. All of these depend on assessments of the
future economic environment and the
Covid-19 and Brexit are amongst the most significant economic events currently faced by the UK,
and at the date of this report their effects are subject to unprecedented levels of uncertainty, with
the full range of possible outcomes and their impacts unknown. We applied a standardised firmand performance. However, no audit should be expected to predict the unknowable factors or all
possible future implications for a company associated with these particular events.

Conclusions relating to going concern
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK)
require us to report to you where:
•
statements is not appropriate; or
• the board has not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties
that may cast
to adopt the going concern basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve months from
the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue.
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In our evaluation
business model, including effects arising from macro-economic uncertainties such as Covid-19 and
s or ability to continue
operations over the period of at least twelve months for the date when the financial statements are
authorised for issue. In accordance with the above, we have nothing to report in these respects.
However, as we cannot predict all future events or conditions and as subsequent events may result
in outcomes that are inconsistent with judgements that were reasonable at the time they were made,
ee that the
group will continue in operation.

Other information
The board is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Financial Statements, set out on pages 3 to 30 other than the financial statements
information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon. In connection with our audit of the financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material
inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is
a material misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other
information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.
We have nothing to report in this regard.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Co-operative and
Community Benefit Societies Act 2014 requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:
•
•
•
•

a satisfactory system of control over transactions has not been maintained; or
the parent Association has not kept proper accounting records;
the financial statements are not in agreement with the books of account; or
we have not received all the information and explanations we need for our audit.

Responsibilities of the board for the financial statements
As explained more fully in the Statement of Board's Responsibilities set out on page 27, the board is
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a
true and fair view, and for such internal control as the board determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.
In preparing the financi
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the board either intend to
liquidate the group or parent Association or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists.
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Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these financial statements.
A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the
Financi
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description

Use of our report
This report is made solely to the Association's members, as a body, in accordance with regulations
made under Sections 87 and 98(7) of the Co-operative and Community Benefit Societies Act 2014.
Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Association's members those
matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the
fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the
Association and the Association's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the
opinions we have formed.

Grant Thornton UK LLP
Statutory Auditor, Chartered Accountants
Manchester
24 September 2020
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Notes

Group
2020
2019
£’000
£’000

Association
2020
2019
£’000
£’000

Turnover

2

28,594

30,374

28,594

30,374

Cost of sales

2

(234)

(2,128)

(234)

(2,128)

Operating expenditure

2

(22,246)

(21,056)

(22,238)

(21,023)

Gain on disposal of fixed assets

5

568

584

568

584

Operating surplus

7

6,682

7,774

6,690

7,807

55

65

55

65

(2,844)

(2,911)

(2,845)

(2,911)

-

-

103

244

3,893

4,928

4,003

5,205

(20)

48

-

-

3,873

4,976

4,003

5,205

11

-

(2,672)

-

(2,672)

11

3,953

(1,405)

3,953

(1,405)

7,826

899

7,956

1,128

Interest receivable
Interest payable and other financing
costs
Gift Aid

6

Surplus before tax
Taxation

8

Surplus for the year after tax
Recognition of SHPS obligation
Actuarial gain/(loss) in respect of
pension schemes
Total comprehensive income for the
year

The consolidated and parent results relate wholly to continuing activities and the notes on pages
39 to 72 form an integral part of these accounts.
The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Board on 24 September
2020 and were signed on its behalf by:

David Gardiner
Chairman

Susan Kearns
Deputy Chairman

Catherine Dixson
Secretary/Chief Executive
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Financial Conduct Authority 18632R
Notes

Group
2020
2019
£’000
£’000

Association
2020
2019
£’000
£’000

Fixed assets
Intangible assets and goodwill

12

-

111

-

-

Tangible fixed assets

housing properties

13

216,610

211,102

216,610

211,102

Tangible fixed assets

other fixed assets

14

2,941

3,337

2,924

3,319

15

-

-

1,098

1,098

219,551

214,550

220,632

215,519

Investment in subsidiaries

Current assets
Stock and properties held for sale

16

585

308

519

269

Trade and other debtors

17

1,336

2,355

1,248

2,286

Cash and cash equivalents

18

11,096

12,543

10,432

11,776

13,017

15,206

12,199

14,331

(6,355)

(7,370)

(6,133)

(7,109)

6,662

7,836

6,066

7,222

244

-

244

-

226,457

222,386

226,942

222,741

Creditors:
Amounts falling due within one year
Net current assets
Debtors after more than one year

19

17

Total assets less current liabilities
Creditors:
Amounts falling due after more than one
year
Provisions:
Defined benefit pension liability - SHPS

20

(155,592) (155,046)

(155,592) (155,046)

(2,844)

(7,145)

(2,844)

(7,145)

68,021

60,195

68,506

60,550

-

-

-

-

Income and expenditure reserve

68,021

60,195

68,506

60,550

Total reserves

68,021

60,195

68,506

60,550

11

Total net assets

Reserves
Share capital

24

The notes on pages 39 to 72 form an integral part of these accounts.
The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Board on 24 September
2020 and were signed on its behalf by:

David Gardiner
Chairman

Susan Kearns
Deputy Chairman

Catherine Dixson
Secretary/Chief Executive
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Share
Capital
£’000

Income and
expenditure
reserve
£’000

Balance at 31 March 2018

-

59,296

Surplus for the year and total comprehensive income

-

4,976

Other comprehensive income for the year

-

(4,077)

Balance at 31 March 2019

-

60,195

Surplus for the year

-

3,873

-

3,953

-

68,021

Share
Capital
£’000

Income and
expenditure
reserve
£’000

Balance at 31 March 2018

-

59,422

Surplus for the year and total comprehensive income

-

5,205

Group Statement of Changes in Reserves

Other Comprehensive Income
Change in actuarial assumptions
Balance at 31 March 2020

Association Statement of Changes in Reserves

Other comprehensive income for the year

(4,077)

Balance at 31 March 2019

-

60,550

Surplus for the year

-

4,003

-

3,953

-

68,506

Other Comprehensive Income
Change in actuarial assumptions
Balance at 31 March 2020

The notes on pages 39 to 72 form an integral part of these accounts.
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2020
£’000

2019
£’000

10,162

11,870

Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of tangible fixed assets
Proceeds from sale of tangible fixed assets
Grants received
Interest received
Net cash from investing activities

(11,421)
1,308
1,670
55
(8,388)

(6,210)
1,151
87
65
(4,907)

Cash flow from financing activities
Interest paid
Repayment of borrowings

(2,549)
(672)

(2,812)
(5,171)

Net cash from financing activities

(3,221)

(7,983)

Net change in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year (Note 18)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year (Note 18)

(1,447)
12,543
11,096

(1,020)
13,563
12,543

Net cash generated from operating activities (see Note A below)
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Note A: Cash flow from operating activities
Surplus for the year*
Adjustments for non-cash items:
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets
Impairment of assets
Amortisation of intangible assets
Amortisation of government grants
Increase/(decrease) in stock
(Decrease) in trade and other debtors
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other creditors
Pension costs less contributions payable*
Adjustments for investing or financing activities:
Net gain/loss on sale of fixed assets
Interest payable
Interest received
Taxation
Net cash generated from operating activities

2020
£’000

2019*
£’000

3,872

4,976

5,537
56
111
(1,142)
(318)
775
(451)
(520)

5,262
111
(1,144)
1,261
(302)
(229)
(327)

(568)
2,845
(55)
20

(584)
2,911
(65)
-

10,162

11,870

*2019 Restated - Surplus for the year £4,976k from Total Comprehensive Income £899k. Pension
costs less contributions payable restated to (£327k) from £3,750 for Other Comprehensive Income
movement of £4,077k. The impact on net cash generated from operating activities is £nil.

Note B: Analysis of changes in net debt

Cash
Money market deposits

Loans due within one year
Loans due greater than one year

At 1 April
2019
£’000

Cash
flows
£’000

Other
non-cash
movements
£’000

At 31 March
2020
£’000

1,483

569

-

2,052

11,060

(2,016)

-

9,044

12,543

(1,447)

-

11,096

(672)

715

(783)

(740)

(67,406)

-

637

(66,769)

(55,535)

(732)

(146)

(56,413)

The notes on pages 39 to 72 form an integral part of these accounts.
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Legal Status
Muir Group Housing Association Limited is incorporated in England under the Co-operative and
Community Benefit Societies Act 2014 and is registered as a Private Registered Provider of Social
Housing. The registered office is 80 Lightfoot Street, Hoole, Chester, CH2 3AL.
The group comprises of the Association and the following entities:
Name

Incorporation

Muir Property Solutions Limited (MPS Ltd)

Companies Act 2006

Registered/
Non-registered
Non-registered

1. Principal Accounting Policies
Basis of Accounting
T
United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (UK GAAP) including Financial Reporting
Standard 102 (FRS 102), the Statement of Recommended Practice for Registered Social Housing
Providers (Housing SORP 2018) and comply with the Accounting Direction for Private Registered
Providers of Social Housing 2019.
The accounts are presented in sterling £.
The Association is a Public Benefit Entity, in accordance with FRS102.

Parent company disclosure exemptions
In preparing the separate financial statements of the parent company, advantage has been taken of
the following disclosure exemptions available in FRS102:
• No cash flow statement has been presented for the parent company,
•
presented as equivalent disclosures have been provided in respect of the group, and
• No disclosure has been given for the aggregate remuneration of the key management
personnel of the parent company as their remuneration is included in the totals for the
group.

Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the results of Muir Group Housing Association
Limited and its subsidiary undertakings as at 31 March 2020 using the purchase method of accounting.

Going concern
The Board approves an annual update of its long term (30 years) Financial Plan, details of which are
submitted to the Regulator of Social Housing in the form of the Financial Forecast Return (FFR). The
Board is satisfied that covenant compliance is maintained throughout the life of the Financial Plan and
that the plan contains significant headroom to deal with a range of changing circumstances without
breaching lenders covenants. The plan has been stress tested against changes in assumptions. The
concern basis which assumes an ability
to continue operating for the foreseeable future, being a period of not less than 12 months from the
date of approval of these financial statements.
t its future performance and financial
position, are set out in the Strategic Report
. The Group
manages its exposure to risk and this activity is reviewed and scrutinised by the Group Audit and Risk
Committee. The principal risks to the Group, key controls and mitigating factors are discussed in detail
on pages 22 to 25
management can be found on
pages 10 to 11 and also within note 29 to the Financial Statements.
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1. Principal Accounting Policies (continued)
Going concern (continued)
with local authorities. The Group prepares robust business plans which are reviewed by the Regulator
lected in the V1 viability status
from the RSH
as a going concern is based on consideration of cash flow forecasts that have been updated for the
period to 31 March 2022 to take account of the effects of Covid-19 and subjected to severe but
plausible downside sensitivities. This assessment is detailed below in the Covid-19 section.
Having assessed the principal risks as set out on pages 22 to 25, the other matters discussed in
connection with the viability statement on page 30 and the severe but plausible downside sensitivities,
the Group Board considers that the Group and the Association have adequate resources to remain in
operation for the foreseeable future, have sufficient cash to more than meet its needs for at least the
12 months from the date of signing the Annual Report and Financial Statements (the going concern
assessment period) and it will continue to meet all borrowing covenants. The Group Board has
therefore continued to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the Financial Statements.

Covid-19
The Covid-19 outbreak has become a global pandemic, moving from an emerging risk to becoming a
principal risk for Muir Group. However, as detailed on page 21, the Group has acted swiftly to put
controls in place to mitigate the effects as far as possible.
The challenges to be faced in the year 2020/2021 due to Covid-19 and the affect that this will have on
some sources of income and costs have been assessed in detail. The Board has considered the impact
on each of its businesses as part of their assessment. The affordable housing business is anticipated
to remain resilient, with continuing strong demand for good quality affordable housing stock, though
the economic fall-out from the Government measures to control the virus will affect our tenants. The
development and maintenance elements of the business has seen a slowdown in on-site activity during
-term strategic aim of increasing housing supply is
unchanged, it is acknowledged that this will have a short-term impact on the timing and delivery of
development plans.
The Group has considered whether any adjustments are required to balances within the Financial
Statements due to Covid-19; in particular, the effects have been incorporated into property impairment
testing and the review of inventory carrying value and have been considered when establishing
expected credit loss provisions for receivables. As detailed within the going concern section above,
cash flow forecasts covering a period of two years have been updated for the impact of Covid-19 and
detailed severe but plausible downside sensitivity testing performed, along with mitigating options
such as delaying expenditure on uncommitted developments. The conclusion of this assessment was
that, even after taking account of the impact of Covidbust,
it has sufficient cash, due to a healthy cash position, undrawn facilities and a new enhanced facility
post year end to more than meet its needs for the going concern assessment period and it will continue
to meet all of its borrowing covenants.

Uncertainty Over the Future Relationship with the European Union (EU)
While the Group operates within England and Wales, its operations mean the uncertainty around the
future relationship with the EU requires careful planning around multiple aspects of our operations.
The Group has a significant level of borrowings and there was initially concern that leaving the EU
would increase the cost of debt. However, there are high levels of demand for secure long-term, good
credit quality bond and private placement issues that housing associations offer and market sentiment
is that funding is readily available.
The Group has ensured sufficient liquidity is available through committed facilities and cash balances
that cover well over the going concern assessment period. The Group has few staff who are citizens
of the EU so this is not a significant risk.
With a moderate development pipeline as well as an ongoing reinvestment programme, the ability to
secure construction contracts and the appropriate materials and labour is key. A
Procurement team has sought assurances from key suppliers on contingency plans for the ongoing
delivery of supplies.

CARING.RESPONSIVE.PASSIONATE.INCLUSIVE.DYNAMIC.HONEST 40

DocuSign Envelope ID: ED3DC0DD-8B75-41D3-93DF-77E8D4DCB4C0

Financial Statements 2020
Muir Group Housing Association Ltd

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

1. Principal Accounting Policies (continued)
Significant judgements and estimates
The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions. However, the nature of estimation means that actual outcomes could differ from those
estimates.
The following are the significant judgements made in applying the accounting policies of the Group
that have the most significant effect on the financial statements:
Impairment
The Association and Group consider individual schemes to be separate Cash Generating Units (CGUs)
when assessing for impairment, in accordance with the requirements of The Financial Reporting
Standard 102 and SORP 2018. Reviews for impairment of housing properties are carried out when a
trigger has occurred. Any impairment loss in a cash generating unit is recognised by a charge to the
Statement of Comprehensive Income. Impairment is recognised where the carrying value of a cash
generating unit exceeds the higher of its net realisable value or its value in use. The Group has
identified a cash generating unit for impairment assessment purposes at scheme level.
In accordance with the Housing and Planning Act 2017, the Association reduced supported and
sheltered housing rents by one per cent per annum the final year being 2019/20. Despite cost
efficiency savings and other changes to the business, compliance with the new rent regime has
resulted in a loss of net income for certain social housing properties; this is a trigger for impairment.
Management consider that a voids loss greater than 5% of income for general needs or 10% for
supported schemes is also a trigger for impairment.
Following a trigger for impairment, the Group perform impairment tests based on fair value less costs
to sell or a value in use calculation. The fair value less costs to sell calculation is based on available
data for Existing Use Value
Social Housing (EUV-SH) for similar properties. The value in use
calculation is based on a depreciated replacement cost. The depreciated replacement cost is based
on available data of the cost of constructing or acquiring replacement properties to provide the same
level of service potential to the Association as the existing property. Following the assessment of
impairment, impairment losses of £55.8k were identified in the reporting period.
Capitalisation of property development costs
potential to proceed, usually when Board approval has taken place including access to the appropriate
funding. After capitalisation, management monitors the asset and considered whether any changes
indicate that impairment is required. There were additions of £7.949m in 2019-20 (Note 13).
Shared Ownership First Tranche Sales
The Group has adopted the accounting treatment specified in the Statement of Recommended
Practice for registered housing providers: Housing SORP 2018 such that:
• the costs of shared ownership properties are split proportionally between current and fixed
assets based on the proportion of the equity sold as the first tranche. Any surplus on disposal
of the first tranche is limited to the overall surplus by adjusting the costs allocated to current
or fixed assets. The overall surplus for these purposes is the difference between the net
present value of expected cash flows and cost. The Association does not assume any
subsequent disposals beyond the first tranche of equity sale in the calculations of expected
cash flows.
• the costs of the first tranche proportions are accounted for as current assets and the related
sales proceeds are shown in turnover the remaining element of the shared ownership property
is accounted for as a fixed asset so that any subsequent sale is treated as a disposal or part
disposal of a fixed asset.
Financial Instruments
Financial instruments which meet the criteria of a basic financial instrument as defined in Section 11
of FRS 102 are accounted for under an amortised historic cost model.
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1. Principal Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial Instruments(continued)
The Group has some fixed rate loans which have a two-way break clause (i.e. in addition to
compensation being payable by a borrower to a lender if a loan is prepaid where the prevailing fixed
borrower in the event that a loan is prepaid and the prevailing fixed rate is higher than the existing
The Financial Reporting Council (FRC) issued a statement on 2 June 2017 in respect
of such loans with no prescriptive direction as to whether t
On the grounds that the Group believes the recognition of each debt liability at cost provides a more
satisfies the requirements of paragraphs 11.8 and 11.9 of FRS 102, the Gro
treatment of its debt following the FRC announcement.
Estimation Uncertainty
Information about estimates and assumptions that have the most significant effect on recognition and
measurement of assets, liabilities, income and expenses is provided below:
Tangible fixed assets
Tangible fixed assets are depreciated over their useful lives considering residual values, where
appropriate. The actual lives of the assets and residual values are assessed annually and may vary
depending on many factors. In re-assessing asset lives, factors such as technological innovation,
product life cycles and maintenance programmes are considered. Residual value assessments
consider issues such as future market conditions, the remaining life of the asset and projected disposal
values. The Net Book Value of tangible fixed assets at 31st March 2020 is £216,610k.
Goodwill and intangible assets
Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary undertaking is the difference between the fair value
of the consideration paid and the fair value of the assets and liabilities acquired. Subsequently
goodwill is carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.
Amortisation is calculated on the straight-line basis over the estimated useful life. Where possible, the
Group establishes a reliable estimate of the useful life of goodwill arising on business combinations.
This is based on a variety of factors such as the expected use of the acquired business, the expected
useful life of the cash generating units to which the goodwill is attributed, any legal, regulatory or
contractual provisions that can limit useful life and assumptions that market participants would
consider in respect of similar businesses. If a reliable estimate of the useful life cannot be determined,
goodwill is amortised over 5 years.
Management has determined that, whilst it is difficult to establish a reliable estimate of the useful life
of goodwill arising on the acquisition of the subsidiary company, a review of future business plans
confirms that the useful life is at least 5 years. As a result, the goodwill is amortised over 5 years.
Defined Benefit Obligation
critical underlying
assumptions such as standard rates of inflation, mortality, discount rate and anticipation of future
salary increases. Variation in these assumptions my significantly impact the liability and the annual
defined benefit expenses (as analysed in Note 11). The net defined benefit pension liability at 31 March
2020 was £2,844k.
Bad debt provision
The Group makes a provision for potential losses as a result of unrecoverable receivable balances.
The only material provision is against outstanding arrears balances. The provision is calculated as a
percentage of the outstanding balance, increasing as the age of the arrears balance increases. The
percentage applied is based on historical experience of recovery.
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1. Principal Accounting Policies (continued)
Turnover and revenue recognition
Turnover represents rental income receivable, amortised capital grant, revenue grants from local
authorities and Homes England, income from the sale of shared ownership and other income and are
recognised in relation to the period when the goods or services have been supplied.
Rental income is recognised when the property is available for let, net of voids. Income from property
sales is recognised on legal completion.

Service charges
Service charge income and costs are recognised on an accruals basis. The Group operates both fixed
and variable service charges on a scheme by scheme basis in full consultation with residents. Where
variable service charges are used the charges will include an allowance for the surplus or deficit from
prior years, with the surplus being returned to residents by a reduced charge and a deficit being
recovered by a higher charge. Until these are returned or recovered they are held as creditors or
debtors in the Statement of Financial Position.
Where periodic expenditure is required a provision may be built up over the years, in consultation with
the residents; until these costs are incurred this liability is held in the Statement of Financial Position
within long term creditors.

Property managed by agents
Where the Group carries the majority of the financial risk on property managed by agents, income
arising from the property is included in the Statement of Comprehensive Income Account.
Where the agency carries the majority of the financial risk, income includes only that which relates
Statement of Financial Position.

Loan set up costs
These are amortised over the life of the related loan. Loans are stated in the Statement of Financial
Position at the amount of the net proceeds after issue, plus increases to account for any subsequent
amounts amortised. Where loans are redeemed during the year, any redemption penalty and any
connected loan finance issue costs are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income
Account in the year in which the redemption was committed.

Value Added Tax
The Group charges VAT on some of its income and can recover part of the VAT it incurs on
expenditure. All amounts disclosed in the accounts are inclusive of VAT to the extent that it is suffered
by the Group and not recoverable. At the year-end VAT recoverable or payable is included in the
Statement of Financial Position, irrecoverable VAT is accounted for in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income.

Tangible fixed assets and depreciation
Housing properties:
Housing properties are principally properties available for rent and are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation. Cost includes the cost of acquiring land and buildings, development costs, interest
charges incurred during the development periods, and expenditure incurred in respect of
improvements, which comprise the modernisation and extension of existing properties. Development
costs include the cost of salaries and direct expenses of the development department.
Works to existing properties which replace a component that has been treated separately for
depreciation purposes, along with those works that result in an increase in net rental income over the
lives of the properties, thereby enhancing the economic benefits of the assets, are capitalised as
improvements.
Housing properties under construction are stated at cost and are not depreciated.
reclassified as housing properties on practical completion of construction.

These are
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1. Principal Accounting Policies (continued)
Housing properties (continued)
Expenditure on shared ownership properties is split proportionally between current and fixed assets
based on the element relating to expected first tranche sales. The first tranche proportion is classed
as a current asset, and related sales proceeds included in turnover, and the remaining element is
classed as fixed assets and included in housing properties at cost, less any provision needed for
depreciation or impairment.
Depreciation of housing properties:
The Group separately identifies the major components which comprise its housing properties, and
charges depreciation, so as to write-down the cost of each component to its estimated residual value,
on a straight-line basis, over its estimated useful economic life. The Group depreciates the major
components of its housing properties over the following useful economic lives:
Depreciation of housing properties:
Years
Structure
100
Roof
50
Bathrooms
30
Kitchens
15
Windows and doors
25
Boilers
15
Heating systems
30
Electrical systems
10
Fire risk equipment
15
Lifts
10
Solar panels
20
Freehold land is not depreciated. Leasehold properties are amortised over the life of the lease or
their estimated useful economic lives in the business, if shorter.
Other tangible fixed assets:
Other tangible fixed assets are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses.
Depreciation is charged on other tangible fixed assets on a straight-line basis over the expected
economic useful lives which are as follows:
Freehold buildings
Short leasehold property
Furniture, fixtures and fittings
Computer & Office equipment
Motor vehicles

Years
50-100
Life of lease
5
3-5
4

Within freehold buildings and long leasehold buildings, individual components are depreciated at the
following annual rates:
Years
Structure
100
Roof
50
Bathrooms
30
Kitchens
15
Windows & doors
25
Boilers
15
Heating systems
30
Electrical system
10
Lifts
10
Solar Panels
20
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1. Principal Accounting Policies (continued)
Other tangible fixed assets (continued)
year of purchase, but no charge is made in the year of
disposal. Land is not depreciated.
Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount
and are recognised within the statement of comprehensive income.

Capitalisation of interest and administration costs
Interest on loans financing development is capitalised up to the date of the completion of the scheme
and only when development activity is in progress.
Administration costs relating to development activities are capitalised only to the extent that they are
incremental to the development process and directly attributable to bringing the property into their
intended use.
Interest payable
Interest is capitalised on capital borrowed to finance developments to the extent that it accrues in
respect of the period of development if it represents either:
a) interest on borrowings specifically financing the development programme after deduction
of interest on social housing grant (SHG) in advance; or
b) interest on borrowings of the Association as a whole after deduction of interest on SHG in
advance to the extent that they can be deemed to be financing the development programme.
Other interest payable / receivable is charged to the income and expenditure account in the year.

Leasing
Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income on a
straight line basis over the term of the lease. Reverse premiums and similar incentives received on
leases to enter into operating lease agreements are released to Statement of Comprehensive Income
over the term of the lease.

Investment in subsidiaries
Investments in subsidiaries are measured at cost less accumulated impairment.

Stock and properties held for sale
Stock of materials are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value being the estimated selling
price less costs to complete and sell. Cost is based on the cost of purchase on a first in, first out basis.
Work in progress and finished goods include labour and attributable overheads.
At each reporting date, stock and properties held for sale are assessed for impairment. If there is
evidence of impairment, the carrying amount is reduced to its selling price less costs to complete and
sell. The impairment loss is recognised immediately in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Debtors and creditors
Debtors and creditors with no stated interest rate and receivable or payable are recorded at
transaction price.
Any losses arising from impairment are recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income in other operating expenses.

Social Housing and other government grants
Government grants include grants receivable from Homes England, local authorities, and other
government organisations. Where developments have been financed wholly or partly by social
housing and other grants, the amount of the grant received has been included as deferred income and
recognised in turnover over the estimated useful life of the associated asset structure (excluding land),
under the accruals model.
When Social Housing Grant (SHG) in respect of housing properties in the course of construction
exceeds the total cost to date of those housing properties, the excess is shown as a current liability.
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1. Principal Accounting Policies (continued)
Social housing and other government grants (continued)
SHG must be recycled by the Group under certain conditions, if a property is sold or if another relevant
event takes place. In these cases, the SHG can be used for projects approved by Homes England and
the Greater London Authority. However, SHG may have to be repaid if certain conditions are not met.
If grant is not required to be recycled or repaid, any unamortised grant is recognised as Turnover. In
certain circumstances SHG may be repayable and, in that event, is a subordinated unsecured repayable
debt.
Where Social Housing Grant is recycled, as described above, the SHG is credited to a fund which
appears as a creditor until used to fund the acquisition of new properties. Where recycled grant is
known to be repayable it is shown as a creditor within one year.

Taxation
The taxation expense represents the aggregate amount of current and deferred tax recognised in the
reporting period. Current tax is recognised on taxable profit for the current and past periods. Current
tax is measured at the amounts of tax expected to be paid or recovered using the tax rates and laws
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.
Deferred tax is recognised in respect of all timing differences at the reporting date. Unrelieved tax
losses and other deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that they will be
recovered against the reversal of deferred tax liabilities or other future taxable profits. Deferred tax is
measured using the tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
reporting date that are expected to apply to the reversal of the timing difference.

Provision for liabilities
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, it is probable that the Group will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation.
Where the effect of the time value of money is material, the amount expected to be required to settle
the obligation is recognised at present value using a pre-tax discount rate. The unwinding of the
discount is recognised as finance cost in the statement of comprehensive income in the period it arises.

Retirement benefits
The Group participates in two funded multi-employer defined benefit schemes, the Social Housing
Pension Scheme (SHPS) and the Pension Trust Growth Plan (PTGP).
For the SHPS, the association is able to identify its share of the scheme assets and scheme liabilities
from 1 April 2018 and therefore has applied defined benefit accounting from this date onwards. FRS
102 Section 28 requires the difference on transition from defined contribution to defined benefit
accounting to be presented separately in other comprehensive income. The group early adopted the
amendment made to Section 28 of FRS 102, as issued in May 2019 by Financial Reporting Council, and
therefore recognised the difference on transaction to defined benefit accounting in the year ended 31
March 2019.
The scheme assets are measured at fair value. Scheme liabilities are measured on an actuarial basis
using the projected unit credit method and are discounted at appropriate high quality corporate bond
rates. The net surplus or deficit is presented separately from other net assets on the statement of
financial position. This has been recognised within the defined pension liability on the face of the
statement of financial position.
As at the year ended 31 March 2020, the net defined benefit pension deficit liability was £2,844k which
has been included within the provisions for pensions liability in the financial statements.

CARING.RESPONSIVE.PASSIONATE.INCLUSIVE.DYNAMIC.HONEST 46

DocuSign Envelope ID: ED3DC0DD-8B75-41D3-93DF-77E8D4DCB4C0

Financial Statements 2020
Muir Group Housing Association Ltd

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

1. Principal Accounting Policies (continued)
Retirement benefit (continued)
In the year ended 31 March 2020, the current service cost and costs from settlements and curtailments
are charged against operating surplus. Past service costs are recognised in the current reporting
period within the income and expenditure account. Interest is calculated on the net defined benefit
liability. Remeasurements are reported in other comprehensive income. Refer to Note 11 for more
details.
For the Growth Plan, it has not been possible to identify the share of underlying assets and liabilities
belonging to individual participating employers. The charge to the income and expenditure represents
the employer contribution payable to the scheme for the accounting period.

Reserves
The group establishes restricted reserves for specific purposes where their use is subject to external
restrictions.
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2(a). Group turnover, cost of sales, operating expenditure and operating surplus
GROUP

2020
Turnover
£’000
27,762

Cost of
sales
£’000
-

Operating
expenditure
£’000
(21,217)

Operating
surplus /
(deficit)
£’000
6,545

Other social housing activities
First tranche low cost home ownership
sales
Development services

258

(234)

-

24

-

-

(714)

(714)

Income from externally managed units

299

-

(177)

122

Other

145

-

-

145

702

(234)

(891)

(423)

130

-

(138)

(8)

28,594

(234)

(22,246)

6,114

Social housing lettings (notes 3a)

Activities other than social housing
Total
Gain on disposal of fixed assets

568

Total operating surplus

6,682

GROUP

2019

Turnover
£’000
27,564

Cost of
sales
£’000
-

Operating
expenditure
£’000
(19,847)

Operating
surplus
/(deficit)
£’000
7,717

Other social housing activities
First tranche low cost home ownership
sales
Development services

2,158

(2,128)

-

30

-

-

(910)

(910)

Income from externally managed units

399

-

(135)

264

122

-

-

122

2,679

(2,128)

(1,045)

(494)

131

-

(164)

(33)

30,374

(2,128)

(21,056)

7,190

Social housing lettings (notes 3a)

Other

Activities other than social housing
Total
Gain on disposal of fixed assets
Total operating surplus

584
7,774

The turnover from activities other than social housing is service charges recoverable from leasehold
tenants £130k (2019: £131k).
The expenditure from activities other than social housing is service charge costs relating to leasehold
tenants £130k (2019: £131k), less profit from subsidiary companies of £103k (2019: £78k) plus the cost
of goodwill amortisation of £111k (2019: £111k).
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2(b). Association turnover, cost of sales, operating expenditure and operating surplus
ASSOCIATION

2020
Turnover
£’000
27,762

Cost of
sales
£’000
-

Operating
expenditure
£’000
(21,217)

Operating
surplus /
(deficit)
£’000
6,545

Other social housing activities
First tranche low cost home ownership
sales
Development services

258

(234)

-

24

-

-

(714)

(714)

Income from externally managed units

299

-

(177)

122

Other

145

-

-

145

702

(234)

(891)

(423)

130

-

(130)

-

28,594

(234)

(22,238)

6,122

Social housing lettings (note 3a)

Activities other than social housing
Total
Gain on disposal of fixed assets

568

Total operating surplus

6,690

ASSOCIATION

2019

Turnover
£’000
27,564

Cost of
sales
£’000
-

Operating
expenditure
£’000
(19,847)

Operating
surplus /
(deficit)
£’000
7,717

Other social housing activities
First tranche low cost home ownership
sales
Development services

2,158

(2,128)

-

30

-

-

(910)

(910)

Income from externally managed units

399

-

(135)

264

122

-

-

122

2,679

(2,128)

(1,045)

(494)

131

-

(131)

-

30,374

(2,128)

(21,023)

7,223

Social housing lettings (note 3a)

Other

Activities other than social housing
Total
Gain on disposal of fixed assets
Total operating surplus

584
7,807

The income and expenditure from activities other than social housing is service charges recoverable
from leasehold tenants.
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3(a). Turnover and operating expenditure
Supported
housing
and
housing
for older
people
£’000

Low cost
home
ownership
£’000

Total
2020
£’000

Total
2019
£’000

20,997

2,097

1,243

24,337

24,212

921

1,070

241

2,232

2,159

Amortised government grants

914

170

58

1,142

1,144

Other income
Turnover from Social Housing
Lettings

-

51

-

51

49

22,832

3,388

1,542

27,762

27,564

4,540

527

295

5,362

5,336

Service charge costs

1,267

946

241

2,454

2,424

Routine maintenance

4,732

434

19

5,185

4,812

Planned maintenance

192

188

1

381

142

2,008

463

130

2,601

2,302

256

26

-

282

200

4,181

557

190

4,928

4,614

Impairment of Housing Properties

-

16

-

16

-

Other Costs
Operating expenditure on Social
Housing Lettings

8

-

-

8

17

17,184

3,157

876

21,217

19,847

5,648

231

666

6,545

7,717

196

246

-

442

430

GROUP AND ASSOCIATION
General
needs
housing
£’000
Income
Rent receivable net of identifiable
service charge
Service charge income

Operating expenditure
Management

Major repairs expenditure
Bad debts
Depreciation of Housing Properties

Operating Surplus on Social
Housing Lettings
Void losses (being rental income
lost as a result of property not
being let, although it is available for
letting)
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4.

Accommodation owned, managed and in development
No. of Properties
GROUP AND ASSOCIATION

2020

2019

3,939

3,517

480

431

Supported housing

251

254

Housing for older people

187

618

Low-cost home ownership

491

498

5,348

5,318

125

146

153

148

23

23

127

127

303

298

Social Housing
General needs housing social rent
General needs housing affordable rent

Total owned and managed:
Accommodation in development at the year end
Other units:
Leasehold management
Leasehold schemes for the elderly
Supported owned but managed by others

The 127 units referred to above are owned by Muir Group Housing Association but are managed on a
day to day basis by external organisations.
The removal of a community alarm service from 431 Housing for older people properties has resulted
in a change of category to General needs during the year.

5.

Gain/(loss) on disposal of property, plant and equipment (fixed assets)

GROUP & ASSOCIATION

Proceeds of sales

Right to
buy/ Right
to Acquire
£’000

Low cost
home
ownership
£’000

Other
property

sale
£’000

Other
fixed
assets
£’000

Total
2020
£’000

Total 2019
£’000

255

959

97

14

1,325

1,151

(184)

(463)

(98)

(12)

(757)

(567)

Surplus/(deficit)

71

496

(1)

2

568

584

Capital grant recycled
(Note 22)

75

48

50

-

173

68

Less: Costs of sales
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6. Interest and financing costs

GROUP AND ASSOCIATION
Loans and bank overdraft
Interest capitalised on housing properties under
construction (Note 13)
Interest Cost on Pension (Note 11)
Unwinding of discount on pension schemes (Note 11)

Group &
Association
2020
2019
£’000
£’000
2,712

2,866

(29)

(103)

160

148

1

-

2,844

2,911

The weighted average interest on borrowings of 3.53% (2019: 4.11%) was used for calculating
capitalised finance costs.

7.

Operating Surplus
2020
£’000

2019
£’000

The operating surplus for the year is stated after charging/(crediting):
Auditors remuneration (excluding VAT):
- Audit of the group financial statements
- Audit of subsidiaries

22
2

22
2

Fees payable to the company’s auditor and its
associates for other services to the group:
- Advisory
- Compliance

14
6

13
3

166
85
-

153
85
-

4,928
608
16
40

4,614
647
-

(2)
111

(120)
111

GROUP

Operating lease rentals:
- Motor vehicles
- Land and buildings
- Office equipment
Depreciation of housing properties
Depreciation of other fixed assets
Impairment of housing properties
Impairment of other assets
(Gain)/Loss on sale of other fixed assets
Amortisation of Intangible assets
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Operating Surplus (continued)
2020
£’000

2019
£’000

The operating surplus for the year is stated after charging/(crediting):
Auditors remuneration (excluding VAT):
- Audit of the group financial statements

22

22

Fees payable to the company’s auditor and its
associates for other services to the group:
- Advisory
- Compliance

14
4

13
3

Operating lease rentals:
- Motor vehicles
- Land and buildings
- Office equipment

52
-

52
-

4,928
598
16
40
(2)

4,614
617
(120)

ASSOCIATION

Depreciation of housing properties
Depreciation of other fixed assets
Impairment of housing properties
Impairment of other assets
(Gain)/Loss on sale of other fixed assets

8.

Tax on Surplus on ordinary activities

Analysis of Tax Charge/(Credit)

Group
2020
2019
£’000
£’000

Association
2020
2019
£’000
£’000

Current tax
UK corporation tax at 19% (2019: 19%)

19

(43)

-

-

Total current tax

19

(43)

-

-

Origination and reversal of timing differences

1

(3)

-

-

Adjustments in respect of prior periods

-

(2)

-

-

Total deferred tax

1

(5)

-

-

20

(48)

-

-

Deferred tax

Total tax on results on ordinary activities
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Tax on Surplus on ordinary activities (continued)

Provision for deferred tax
Fixed asset timing differences

Group
2020
2019
£’000
£’000
1
1

Association
2020
2019
£’000
£’000
-

Short term timing differences

-

(1)

-

-

Total deferred tax asset

1

-

-

-

Provision at start of period

-

5

-

-

Deferred tax charged for the period

1

(5)

-

-

Provision at end of period

1

-

-

-

Movement in Provision

The tax assessed in the year is lower than the standard rate of corporation tax in the United
Kingdom at 19% (2019: 19%). The differences are explained as follows:

Total tax reconciliation

Group
2020
2019
£’000
£’000

Association
2020
2019
£’000
£’000

Surplus on ordinary activities before tax

3,893

4,928

4,003

5,205

740

936

761

989

(720)

(985)

(761)

(989)

-

1

-

-

20

(48)

-

-

Theoretical tax at UK corporation tax rate 19%
(2019: 19%)
Profits exempt from tax due to charitable
exemption
Depreciation (less than)/in excess of capital
allowances
Total tax charge

9.

Employee information

The average number of persons employed during the year expressed in full time equivalents
(calculated based on a standard working week of 35 hours for the Association and a mixture of 37.5
hours and 40 hours for the subsidiary within the Group):
Group
2020
No.
Administration

2019
No.

Association
2020
2019
No.
No.

56

51

39

38

7

6

7

6

Housing, support and care

74

70

74

69

Maintenance operatives

35

30

-

-

172

157

120

113

Development
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9. 9. Employee information (continued)

Employee Costs (including Executive
Directors)

Group
2020
2019
£’000
£’000

Association
2020
2019
£’000
£’000

Wages and salaries

5,495

5,054

3,961

3,760

Social Security costs

551

519

403

393

Other pension costs

410

257

375

239

6,456

5,830

4,739

4,392

Pension Trust Growth Plan (PTGP). The employees of other group members are members of a
defined contribution (DC) scheme managed by Legal & General. Further information on each
scheme is provided in Note 11. Aggregate number of full-time equivalent staff (within the Group)
whose remuneration (including loss of office) exceeded £60,000 in the period split by Executive
Management Team and Other staff:

Pay Bands
£60,001 - £70,000
£70,001 - £80,000
£80,001 - £90,000
£90,001 - £100,000
£100,001 - £110,000
£110,001 - £120,000
£120,001 - £130,000
£130,001 - £140,000
£140,001 - £150,000

Executive
Management Team
2020
2019
No.
No.
1
2
1
1
1
1
1
4
4

Other Staff
2020
No.
3
3
4
10

2019
No.
2
4
6
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Key management personnel

For the purpose of this note, key management personnel include members of the Executive
Management Team and Non-Executive Board members. The emoluments payable to Directors in the
year, including Board members are:

Executive Directors:
Catherine Dixson
(Chief Executive)
Andrew Hunt
(Executive Director Resources)
Sam Scott
(Executive Director Operations)
Barry Brussels
(Managing Director of MPS Ltd)
Board Members:
David Gardiner
Clare Babbs
Peter Fieldsend
Robert Fleming
Siraz Natha
Susan Kearns
Peter McHugh
Jan Chillery
Alison Greaves
Helen Wordsworth
Kaylani Ghandi Rhodes
Pam Williams
Total Board
Total Key Management Personnel

Gross
Salary
£

Benefits
£

Pension
£

Total
2020
£

Total
2019
£

125,973

12,597

10,340

148,910

136,375

103,877

10,388

8,532

122,797

111,181

99,919

9,983

8,197

118,099

107,613

93,530

9,353

-

102,883

104,074

423,299

42,321

27,069

492,689

459,243

11,616
6,119
5,071
7,336
9,259
8,172
5,071
2,595
5,089
5,089
3,965
69,382
492,681

42,321

27,069

11,616
6,119
5,071
7,336
9,259
8,172
5,071
2,595
5,089
5,089
3,965
69,382
562,071

11,360
509
7,182
4,959
7,058
8,271
8,160
4,959
6,734
1,037
1,037
61,129
520,372

The aggregate remuneration for key management personnel, which includes members of the
Executive Management Team, charged in the year is:

Executive Directors

Basic Salary

Group
2020
2019
£’000
£’000

Association
2020
2019
£’000
£’000

423

410

330

306

Benefits in Kind

42

30

33

30

Employers NIC

59

52

46

39

Pension Contributions

27

20

27

20

551

512

436

395
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10. Key management personnel (continued)

Board Members

Basic Salary

Group
2020
2019
£’000
£’000

Association
2020
2019
£’000
£’000

69

61

69

61

Benefits in Kind

-

-

-

-

Employers NIC

1

1

1

1

Pension Contributions

-

-

-

-

70

62

70

62

The emoluments of the highest paid director, the Chief Executive, excluding pension contributions,
were £139k (2019: £129k)
See page 26 for membership and attendance at Board and Committee meetings.
The Chief Executive is an ordinary member of the SHPS pension scheme. The pension scheme is a
final salary scheme funded by annual contributions by the employer and employee. No enhanced or
special terms apply. There are no additional pension arrangements.
During the year, the aggregate compensation for loss of office of key management personnel was nil
(2019: £nil).

11.

Pension Obligations

Social Housing Pension Scheme
The association participates in SHPS, a multi-employer pension scheme which provides benefits to
non-associated participating employers. The scheme is classed as a defined benefit scheme in the UK.
of the scheme deficit following withdrawal from the scheme. Participating employers are legally
required to meet their share of the scheme deficit on an annuity purchase basis on withdrawal from
the scheme.
On 1 April 2018, sufficient information became available for the association in respect of SHPS to
account for its obligation on a defined benefit basis. This change on transition resulted in a remeasurement difference of £2,672k, which was recognised at the relevant date of application, on 1
April 2018, in other comprehensive income, was therefore reflected in the year ended 31 March 2019.
The most recent formal actuarial valuation was completed as at 30 September 2017 and rolled forward,
allowing for the different financial assumptions required under FRS 102, to 31 March 2020 by a qualified
independent actuary.
The net defined benefit liability at the year ended 31 March 2020 is £2,844k (2019: £7,145k).
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Fair value of plan assets, present
value of defined benefit obligation
and defined benefit asset (liability)

2020
£’000

2019
£’000

Fair value of plan assets

21,134

20,177

23,978

27,322

Surplus/(deficit) in plan

(2,844)

(7,145)

Defined benefit asset/(liability) to be recognised

(2,844)

(7,145)

Present value of defined benefit obligations

Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of the defined benefit obligation

2020
£’000

Defined benefit obligation at the start of the period

27,322

Current service cost

462

Expenses

25

Interest expense

638

Contributions by plan participants

129

Actuarial losses/(gains) due to scheme experience

(325)

Actuarial losses/(gains) due to changes in demographic assumptions

(236)

Actuarial losses/(gains) due to changes in financial assumptions

(3,477)

Benefits paid and expenses

(560)

Defined benefit obligation at end of period

23,978

Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of the fair value on plan assets

2020
£’000

Fair value of plan assets at start of period

20,177

Interest income
Experience on plan assets (excluding amounts included in interest income

478
gain/(loss)

(86)

Contributions by the employer

996

Contributions by plan participants

129

Benefits paid and expenses

(560)

Fair value of plan assets at end of period

21,134

The actual return on the plan assets (including any changes in share of assets) over the period ended
31 March 2020 was £392k.
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11. Pension Obligations (continued)
2020
£’000

Defined benefit costs recognised in Statement of Comprehensive Income
Current service cost

462

Expenses

25

Net interest expense

160

Defined benefit costs recognised in statement of comprehensive income (SoCI)

647
2020
£’000

Defined benefit costs recognised in Other Comprehensive Income
Experience on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest cost)
gain/(loss)
Experience gains and losses arising on plan liabilities

(86)
325

gain/(loss)

Effects of changes in demographic assumptions underlying the present value of the
defined benefit obligation gain/(loss)
Effects of changes in financial assumptions underlying the present value of the defined
benefit obligation gain/(loss)

237
3,477

Total actuarial gains and losses – gain/(loss)

3,953

Total amount recognised in other comprehensive income – gain/(loss)

3,953

2020
% per annum

2019
% per annum

Discount rate

2.36

2.33

Inflation (RPI)

2.58

3.28

Inflation (CPI)

1.58

2.28

Salary Growth

2.58

3.28

75% of
maximum
allowance

75% of
maximum
allowance

Key Assumptions

Allowance for commutation of pension for cash at retirement

The mortality assumptions adopted at 31 March 2020 imply the following life
expectancies:

Life expectancy
at age 65
(Years)

Male retiring in 2020

21.5

Female retiring in 2020

23.3

Male retiring in 2040

22.9

Female retiring in 2040

24.5
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Pension Obligations (continued)

Pension Trust Growth Plan
The Association participates in the scheme, a multi-employer scheme which provides benefits to some
950 non-associated participating employers. The scheme is a defined benefit scheme in the UK. It is
not possible for the company to obtain sufficient information to enable it to account for the scheme
as a defined benefit scheme. Therefore, it accounts for the scheme as a defined contribution scheme.
The Association continues to offer the Growth Plan as an AVC investment option for members of
SHPS. The members pay contributions at a rate of their choice. The Association does not pay any
contributions to the Growth Plan.
At the balance sheet date there was 1 active member of the Plan. The Association continues to offer
membership of the Plan to its employees.
The scheme is subject to the funding legislation outlined in the Pensions Act 2004 which came into
force on 30 December 2005. This, together with documents issued by the Pensions Regulator and
Technical Actuarial Standards issued by the Financial Reporting Council, set out the framework for
funding defined benefit occupational pension schemes in the UK.
The scheme is classified as a 'last-man standing arrangement'. Therefore, the company is potentially
liable for other participating employers' obligations if those employers are unable to meet their share
of the scheme deficit following withdrawal from the scheme. Participating employers are legally
required to meet their share of the scheme deficit on an annuity purchase basis on withdrawal from
the scheme.
A full actuarial valuation for the scheme was carried out at 30 September 2017. This valuation showed
assets of £795m, liabilities of £927m and a deficit of £132m. To eliminate this funding shortfall, the
Trustee has asked the participating employers to pay additional contributions to the scheme as
follows:

Deficit Contributions: payable monthly and increasing by 3% each on 1st April

Per annum
£’000

From 1 April 2019 to 31 January 2025:

11

Unless a concession has been agreed with the Trustee the term to 31 January 2025 applies.
Where the scheme is in deficit and where the company has agreed to a deficit funding arrangement
the company recognises a liability for this obligation. The amount recognised is the net present value
of the deficit reduction contributions payable under the agreement that relates to the deficit. The
present value is calculated using the discount rate detailed in these disclosures. The unwinding of the
discount rate is recognised as a finance cost.

Present Value of Provision
At 31 March

2020
£’000

2019
£’000

2018
£’000

51

62

87
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Pension Obligations (continued)

GROUP AND ASSOCIATION
Reconciliation of opening and closing provisions:
Provision at start of period – 31 March
Unwinding of discount factor (interest expense)
Deficit contribution paid
Remeasurements

impact of any changes in assumptions

Remeasurements

amendments to the contribution scheme

Provision at the end of the period – 31 March

Income and expenditure impact
Interest expense
Remeasurements

impact of any change in assumptions

Remeasurements

amendments to the contribution schedule

Assumptions
Rate of Discount

2020
£’000
62

2019
£’000
87

1

1

(11)

(11)

(1)

(1)

-

(15)

51

62

2020
£’000
1

2019
£’000
1

(1)

(1)

-

(15)

2020

2019

2018

2.53%

1.39%

1.71%

The discount rates shown above are the equivalent single rates which, when used to discount the
future recover plan contributions due, would give the same results as using a full AA corporate bond
yield curve to discount the same recovery plan contributions.

12.

Intangible assets and goodwill

On 2nd April 2015 (effective from 1st April 2015), Muir Group Housing Association purchased the entire
share capital of a maintenance contractor, Muir Property Solutions Limited, resulting in the latter
becoming a wholly owned subsidiary company. The goodwill arising on consolidation is amortised
over 5 years.
GROUP
Cost on valuation at start and end of year

Goodwill
£’000
555

Amortisation
At start of year
Provision for year
At end of year

(444)
(111)
(555)

Net book value
At 31 March 2020
At 31 March 2019

111
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Tangible fixed assets – housing properties
Social
housing
properties
for letting
completed
£’000

Social
housing
properties
for letting
under
construction
£’000

Low cost
home
ownership
properties
completed
£’000

Low cost
home
ownership
properties
under
construction
£’000

Total
housing
properties
£’000

241,903

3,941

25,893

30

271,767

53

-

(53)

-

-

39

-

28

-

67

-

7,257

-

692

7,949

5,736

(5,736)

466

(466)

-

Components replaced

3,122

-

-

-

3,122

Components disposed

(956)

-

-

-

(956)

-

27

(4)

6

29

(332)

-

(480)

-

(812)

249,565

5,489

25,850

262

281,166

57,392

-

3,273

-

60,665

164

-

(164)

-

-

4,760

-

168

-

4,928

16

-

-

-

16

(956)

-

-

-

(956)

(43)

-

(54)

-

(97)

61,333

-

3,223

-

64,556

At 31 March 2020

188,232

5,489

22,627

262

216,610

At 31 March 2019

184,511

3,941

22,620

30

211,102

GROUP & ASSOCIATION
Cost
At start of the year
Transfer between tenure
Works to existing
properties
Properties acquired
Schemes completed

Interest capitalised
Disposals
At end of the year

Depreciation and impairment
At start of the year
Transfer between tenure
Depreciation
Impairment
Disposals components
Disposals housing
properties
At end of the year

Net book value
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13.

Tangible fixed assets – housing properties (continued)

Expenditure on works to existing properties
GROUP AND ASSOCIATION
Components capitalised
Amounts charged to income and expenditure

2020
£’000
3,122

2019
£’000
2,779

8,167

7,256

11,289

10,035

Grant and financial assistance
GROUP AND ASSOCIATION
The total accumulated government grant and financial
assistance received or receivable at 31 March:

2020
£’000

2019
£’000

113,446

111,363

Held as deferred capital grant

88,994

87,997

Recognised in Statement of Comprehensive Income

24,452

23,366

113,446

111,363

Cost of properties includes £196k (2019: £97k) for direct administrative costs capitalised during the
year. The amount of interest capitalised in 2020 was £29k (2019: £103k).
Impairment:
The Association and Group consider individual schemes to be separate Cash Generating Units (CGUs)
when assessing for impairment, in accordance with the requirements of The Financial Reporting
Standard 102 and SORP 2018. An impairment charge against a scheme, made up of one property,
for £16k was made during the year (2019: £nil). A comparison of value in use against the carrying
amount was carried out due to the loss of rental income from one room.

14.

Tangible fixed assets – other fixed assets
Freehold
offices
£’000

Commercial
property
£’000

Furniture,
fixtures &
fittings
£’000

Computer
and office
equipment
£’000

Motor
vehicles
£’000

Total
fixed
assets
£’000

3,492

32

639

2,708

317

7,188

Additions

-

-

34

190

-

224

Disposals

-

-

-

-

(16)

(16)

3,492

32

673

2,898

301

7,396

GROUP
Cost
At start of the year

At end of the year

Depreciation and impairment
At start of the year

1,058

14

608

2,075

96

3,851

Charge for the year

146

1

20

366

75

608

-

-

-

-

(4)

(4)

1,204

15

628

2,441

167

4,455

At 31 March 2020

2,288

17

45

457

134

2,941

At 31 March 2019

2,434

18

31

633

221

3,337

Disposals
At end of the year
Net Book Value
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14.

Tangible fixed assets – other fixed assets (continued)
Freehold
offices
£’000

Commercial
Property
£’000

Furniture,
fixtures &
fittings
£’000

Computer
and office
equipment
£’000

Motor
vehicles
£’000

Total
fixed
assets
£’000

3,492

32

577

2,596

317

7,014

Additions

-

-

33

182

-

215

Disposals

-

-

-

-

(16)

(16)

3,492

32

610

2,778

301

7,213

ASSOCIATION
Cost
At start of the year

At end of the year

Depreciation and impairment
At start of the year

1,058

14

560

1,967

96

3,695

Charge for the year

146

1

15

361

75

598

-

-

-

-

(4)

(4)

1,204

15

575

2,328

167

4,289

At 31 March 2020

2,288

17

35

450

134

2,924

At 31 March 2019

2,434

18

17

629

221

3,319

Disposals
At end of the year
Net Book Value

15.

Investment in subsidiaries

Muir Group Housing Association Limited has investments in subsidiaries of £1,098k as at 31 March
2020 (2019: £1,098k). Cost at acquisition on 2nd April 2015 was £1,098k and no impairment has been
recorded since this date.
As required by statute, the financial statements consolidate the results of Muir Property Solutions
Limited, which is the subsidiary of the Association at the end of the year. The Association has the
right to appoint members to the Boards of the subsidiaries and thereby exercises control over them.
Muir Property Solutions Limited is a non-regulated company. Muir Group Housing Association
Limited is the ultimate parent undertaking. See Note 28 Related Parties for details of transaction
between the parent and subsidiary during the year.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

Stock

Stock of materials and work in progress

Group
2020
2019
£’000
£’000
66
39

Association
2020
2019
£’000
£’000
-

66

39

-

-

Shared ownership properties:
Completed properties

182

72

182

72

Work in progress

180

-

180

-

362

72

362

72

157

197

157

197

585

308

519

269

Offices held for sale

Impairment:
The Association and Group consider individual schemes to be separate Cash Generating Units (CGUs)
when assessing for impairment, in accordance with the requirements of The Financial Reporting
Standard 102 and SORP 2018. An impairment charge of £40k was made during the year in respect
of an office held for sale (2019: £nil). An independent 3rd party valuation was obtained and compared
to the carrying value resulting in an impairment.

17.

Trade and other debtors

Debtors due within one year
Rent arrears
Less: provision for bad debts
Other debtors
Prepayment and accrued income
Debtors due within one year
Debtors after more than one year
Prepayment and accrued income

Group
2020
2019
£’000
£’000
1,184
1,092
(681)
(576)

Association
2020
2019
£’000
£’000
1,184
1,092
(681)
(576)

503
160
673
1,336

516
994
845
2,355

503
160
585
1,248

244

-

244

516
995
775
2,286

-

Debtors due after more than one year relate to prepayments for information technology support
contracts taken over 3-5 years.

18.

Cash and cash equivalents

Money market investments

Group
2020
2019
£’000
£’000
9,044
11,544

Association
2020
2019
£’000
£’000
9,044
11,544

Cash at bank

2,052

999

1,388

232

11,096

12,543

10,432

11,776

In the above are balances totalling £605k (2019: £535k) which are held in trust for shared ownership
and other leaseholders.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

Loans and overdrafts (Note 20b)
Trade creditors

Group
2020
2019
£’000
£’000
740
672

Association
2020
2019
£’000
£’000
740
672

638

745

198

189

-

-

334

418

932

1,158

932

1,158

19

-

-

-

1

-

-

-

167

40

120

2

Accruals and deferred income

2,092

2,624

2,083

2,575

Pension growth plan (Note 11)

11

10

11

10

1,144

1,144

1,144

1,144

256

639

256

639

-

190

-

190

355

148

315

112

6,355

7,370

6,133

7,109

Amounts owed to group undertakings
Rents and service charges paid in advance
Corporation tax
Deferred tax liability
Other taxation and social security payable

Deferred Capital Grant (Note 21)
Recycled Capital Grant Fund (Note 22)
Disposal proceeds fund (Note 23)
Other creditors

20(a).

Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year
Group
2020

2019

Association
2020
2019

Loans (Note 20b)

66,769

67,406

66,769

67,406

Deferred Capital Grant (Note 21)

87,850

86,853

87,850

86,853

Recycled capital grant fund (Note 22)

246

127

246

127

Leaseholder sinking funds

686

608

686

608

41

52

41

52

155,592

155,046

155,592

155,046

Pension agreement plans (Note 11)
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20(b).

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

Debt analysis
Group
2020
2019
£’000
£’000

Association
2020
2019
£’000
£’000

Due within one year
Bank and building society loans

343

293

343

293

Local Authority loans

371

355

371

355

Capital markets/Other

26

24

26

24

740

672

740

672

54,326

54,670

54,326

54,670

11,423

11,794

11,423

11,794

1,375

1,401

1,375

1,401

67,124

67,865

67,124

67,865

(355)

(459)

(355)

(459)

66,769

67,406

66,769

67,406

67,509

68,078

67,509

68,078

740

672

740

672

One year or more but less than two years

1,846

1,276

1,846

1,276

Two years or more but less than five years

4,149

4,037

4,149

4,037

Five years or more

61,129

62,552

61,129

62,552

Less: loan issue costs

(355)

(459)

(355)

(459)

67,509

68,078

67,509

68,078

Due after more than one year
Bank and building society loans
Local Authority loans
Capital markets/ Other
Less: loan set up costs

Total Loans

Debt is repayable as follows:
Within one year

Total loans

Security
Terms of repayments and interest rates
Bank and building society loans are repayable by instalment. For annuity-based loans the rates of
interest charged varies between 3.50% and 5.61% with final instalments falling between 2026 and 2041.
Two bullet repayments occur in 2027 and 2030 and the interest charged this year is between 0.98%
and 5.81%.
Local authority loans are repayable by instalment with final instalments falling between 2033 and 2051.
Rates of interest charged vary between 3.28% and 15.13%. Capital market loans is due 2038 the rate of
interest charged is 11.19%.
The Group has undrawn committed borrowing facilities available at 31 March 2020 of £22.5m (2019:
£22.5m).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

Deferred capital grant

GROUP AND ASSOCIATION
At start of the year

2020
£’000
87,997

2019
£’000
89,013

Grant received in the year
Disposal of grant in the year
Released to income in the year
At the end of the year

2,299
(160)
(1,142)
88,994

185
(57)
(1,144)
87,997

Amount due to be released < 1 year
Amount due to be released > 1 year

1,144
87,850

1,144
86,853

88,994

87,997

2020
£’000

2019
£’000

766

867

173
1

68
3

(418)
(20)
502

(172)
766

256
246

639
127

22.

Recycled capital grant fund

GROUP AND ASSOCIATION
Funds pertaining to activities within areas covered by:
Opening balance
Inputs to RCGF:
Grants recycled (see Note (i) below)
Interest accrued
Recycling of grant:
New build
Other
Repayment of funds to Homes England
Closing balance
Amounts 3 years old or older where repayment may be required
Amount due to be utilised < 1 year
Amount due to be utilised >1 year

502
766
Note (i):
Grants recycled of £173K (2019: £68k) in year ended March 2020 all related to disposal of properties
(see note 5).

23.

Disposal proceeds fund
2020
£’000

2019
£’000

190

190

(190)

-

Closing balance

-

190

Amounts 3 years old or older where repayment may be required

-

-

Amount due to be utilised < 1 year

-

190

Amount due to be utilised >1 year

-

-

-

190

GROUP AND ASSOCIATION
Funds pertaining to activities within areas covered by:
Opening balance
Use of funds: new build
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24.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

Share capital

GROUP AND ASSOCIATION

2020
£

2019
£

19

31

1

2

(2)

(14)

18

19

Allotted Issued and Fully Paid
At the start of the year
Issued during the year
Surrendered during the year
At the end of the year

The par value of each share is £1. The shares do not have a right to any dividend or distribution in a
winding-up and are not redeemable. Each share has full voting rights. All shares are fully paid.

25.

Capital commitments
2020
£’000

2019
£’000

10,314

7,297

2,092

6,660

12,406

13,957

Social housing grant

1,483

4,207

Proceeds from the sales of properties

1,706

1,621

Cash and committed loan facilities

9,217

8,129

12,406

13,957

GROUP AND ASSOCIATION
Capital Expenditure
Expenditure contracted for but not provided for in the financial
statements
Expenditure authorised by the Board but not contracted for

The Association expects these commitments to be financed with:
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

Operating leases

The Group holds properties, motor vehicles and office equipment under non-cancellable operating
leases. At the end of the year the Group and Association had commitments of future minimum lease
payments as follows:
Group
Association
2020
2019
2020
2019
£’000
£’000
£’000
£’000
Land and buildings:
In one year or more but less than two years
In two years or more and less than five years
In five years or more

54

89

54

56

104

27

104

27

47

-

47

Others:
In one year or more but less than two years
In two years or more and less than five years

123

161

-

-

31

129

-

-

359

406

205

83

Other operating leases include motor vehicles and office equipment. All leases are less than 5 years.

27.

Contingent assets and liability

The Group and Association had no contingent assets as at 31 March 2020 (2019: nil). The Association
receives capital grant from the Homes England, which is used to fund the acquisition and development
of housing properties and their components. In certain circumstances upon disposal of grant funded
properties the group is required to recycle this grant by crediting the Recycled Capital Grant Fund.
At 31 March 2020, the Group has disposed of components, which had received £173k (2019: £68k) of
grant funding. Although the disposal of these components has not given rise to a relevant event for
the purposes of recycling the grant (as the Group retains the property asset), it does have a future
obligation to recycle this grant once the property is disposed of.
As the timing of any future disposal is uncertain, no provision has been recognised in these financial
statements.
The Association has previously been notified by the Pension Trust of the estimated employer debt on
withdrawal from the Growth Plan based on the financial position of the Scheme as at 30 September
2019. No further information has been released since this date so the best estimate of the employer
debt for the Association is £119k (2019: £149k) for the Growth Plan.
The Group and Association had no other contingent liabilities as at 31 March 2020 (2019: nil).
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28.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

Related parties

The following are related parties:
At the start of the year there were two tenant members of the Board, Susan Kearns and Alison Greaves,
who held tenancy agreements on normal terms and cannot use their position to their advantage.
During the year Alison Greaves resigned from the Board. The combined gross rent charged for the
relevant period for tenant Board members was £6,411 (2019: £8,212). There are no arrears on their
tenancies at the reporting period end (2019: nil).
Disclosure in relation to key management personnel compensation is shown in Note 10.
Transactions with subsidiaries:
During the year ended 31 March 2020, Muir Property Solutions Limited generated revenue of £5,717k
from Muir Group Housing Association (2019: £4,378k). In 2019/20, the Association recharged amounts
to Muir Property Solutions Limited, an unregistered entity:

Accounting services
Recharge of Directors
Services
ICT services

2020
£’000
12

2019
£’000
10

14

26

20

0

Allocation basis
Time apportionment of finance staff
and overhead allocation
Agreed remuneration for
representation on subsidiary Board
Time apportionment of ICT staff and
overhead allocation

During 2018/19 Friends of Muir Group, a previous subsidiary of the Group, was dissolved and struck
off Companies House and the Charities Commission Registers. Upon completion of this process, a
cash balance transfer of £4k was made to be released by Muir Group to support local charities. Of
this cash transfer £2.3k remains available at year end to support local charities during 2020/21

29.

Financial Instruments

The Group’s financial instruments can be analysed as follows:
Financial Assets
(a) Financial assets measured at fair value through profit and loss
(b) Financial assets that are debt instruments measured at amortised cost
(c) Financial assets that are equity instruments measured at cost less
impairment
Financial Liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities measured at fair value through profit and loss
(b) Derivative financial instruments designated as hedges of variable
interest rate risk
(c) Financial liabilities at amortised cost
(d) Loan commitments measured at cost less impairment

Financial Assets
Financial assets earning interest
Financial assets on which no interest is earned

2020
£’000

2019
£’000

12,451

14,697

-

-

12,451

14,697

-

-

-

-

160,090
160,090

160,548
160,548

2020
£’000
11,097

2019
£’000
12,543

1,354
12,451

2,154
14,697
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial assets earning interest comprise cash at bank and in hand. These are floating rate,
attracting interest at rates that vary with bank rates. Financial assets on which no interest is earned
comprise of rental and service charge debtors, social housing grant receivable and other debtors. All
financial assets are denominated in sterling.
Financial liabilities – interest rate risk profile
abilities are sterling denominated. Financial liabilities which attract interest
comprise loans, Recycled Capital Grant Funds and Disposal Proceeds Funds. The interest rate
profile of the loans portfolio at 31 March was:

Fixed rate

2020
£’000
38,787

2019
£’000
39,443

Floating Rate

29,078

29,094

67,865

68,537

The floating rate financial liabilities comprise multiple bank loans that bear interest at rates based on
either one-month LIBOR or rates calculated by the lender. The fixed rate financial liabilities have a
weighted average interest of 4.3% (2019: 4.3%) and the weighted average period for which it is fixed
is 16 years (2019: 18 years).
interest comprise trade creditors, deferred capital grant fund, accruals and other creditors.
Borrowing facilities
The Group has undrawn committed borrowing facilities available at 31 March 2020 of £22.5m (2019:
£22.5m). The Association extended its borrowing facilities by £15m in April 2020. This facility is for
seven years and is in the form of a revolving credit facility for the first five years.

30.

Post Balance Sheet Events

Borrowing facilities
The Association extended its borrowing facilities by £15m in April 2020. This facility is for seven years
and is in the form of a revolving credit facility for the first five years.
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